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SHARING OUR SUCCESS
Dear Shareholder

Over the course ofthe past year vhi1e the stock market has recovered some ofils losses during 2008 Federal Reserve haimian Ben

Bernanke has warned that he exJects high unemployment and lov interest rates to continue as the country undergoes nascent economic

recovery froi the worst downturn in generations In 2009 personal bankruptcies

increased by 32% ocr 2008 Concerns about the viability of commercial ical estate

CDOs the fragility ofthe Euro aiid the aarn1ing rise in municipal and federal debt

continue to persist

Ioweer amid the continuing problems with the world economy am very pleased to

report that once again Life Partners loldings Inc has continued to grow in revenues

and earnings and has increased shareholder equity by 36% over last year Despite dire

predictions to the contrary our stock price increased by approximately 50% over the

past year and our market capitalization exceeds $300 million

There are two key elements to the stabiliiation and growth of out shares These

elements are continuing profitability and our boards commitment to sharing our

companys success with our shareholders through reliable dividend policy

Our profitability comes from our commitment to bringing value to all parties in our life settlement transactions For our clients this means

providing them access to noncorrelated assetbased investment that does not rely on the equity or bond markets for profitability For

senior citizens it means unlocking the hidden value of their life insurance policies and bringing them liquidity at time when they may

be financially stressed by current economic conditions Our role as the catalyst for creating value to both parties in these transactions is

unique and thus highly valuable

The second element is philosophy that provides conduit for the value we create to flow through to our shareholders Our success is

shared vith our shareholders through reliable dividend policy that tiacks our profitability This policy attracts long-term shareholders

and stabilizes the share price

In short our sound management practices focus on value creation which generates profitability that is distributed to shareholders through

our di idend polic thereby increasing shareholder wealth

We also recognite that paying healthy dividend must not impede corporate growth In that regard management has been very successful

in growing the company On February 28 2010 we had S38 million in current assets 3O/ increase over last year This includes S23

million in cash and cash equivalents and another 12 million in short term receivables We continue to use excess retained earnings to invest

in policies side by side with our clients By investing in fractional interests along with our investors we will grow our assets together

As we look to the future we believe the number of policies presented to us will increase as more of our nations seniors become aware

of the option to turn their death benefits into living benefits We are pleased to offer this financial option to Americas seniors especially

during these difficult economic times By providing seniors with immediate cash value for their unwanted life insurance policies Life

Partners Inc provides private sector solution to public sector problem For many sellers an insurance policy is the least objectionable

asset to sell in order to meet their current liquidity needs

We believe there is no other asset class that offers better risk-adjusted return to its investors and provides vin-win scenario for both

buyers and sellers than life settlements Because we are The Architect of Life Settlements we are proud to be leader in this asset class

and we appreciate your support as shareholder

Sincere

Brian Pardo

Chairman CEO

Life Partners Holdiiigs Inc
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THE ARCHITECT OF LIFE SETTLEMENTSTM

Life Partners introduced the concept of secondary

market for life insurance to the capital markets back in

1997 No the concept has become widely accepted

and Life Partners is proud to be known as the Architect

of Life SettlementsM

Life Partners is the only publicly traded company

operating exclusively in the secondary market for life

insurance We are financial services company that

earns fees from providing purchasing agent services to

our clients

Working through our primary operating subsidiary

Life Partners Inc we originate analyze and

purchase existing life insurance policies for our

worldwide client base We also purchase policies for

our own investment work as fund advisor to funds

purchasing life settlement policies and are developing

customized managed funds to meet the investment

needs of qualified buyers

0I
Life Partners is the

only public company

operating solely in

the secondary life

insurance market

2009 2008 COMPANY NAMECIty State TICKER

UFE PARTNERS HOLDINGS Waco TX LPHI

UNIVERSAL INSURANCE HLDGS Fort Lauderdale LNE

70 HMS HOLDINGS CORP NewYoric HMSY

23 EBIX INC Atlanta EBIX

DG FASTCHANNEL Irving ix DGIT

39 AMERICAN PHYSICIANS Austin AMPH

TRANSCEND SERVICES Atlanta ThCR

FEMALE HEALTh Chicago FHCO

42 BANKRATE INC North Palm Beach ft RATE

10 89 ROYAL GOLD INC Denver RGLD
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HELPING SENIORS FIND HIDDEN VALUE IN THEIR LIFE INSURANCE

Fortune Small Business Magazine

July/August 2009

Most people in our situation still have no idea they can seil their life insurance policy if they no

longer need it If youre senior citizen you should talk to your financial advisor about whether life

settlement is right for you

Pam McMahon wife of Ed McMahon

Life Partners Inc Testimonial March 2010

HELPING OUR CLIENTS FIND INVESTMENT ALTERNATIVES

In the past decade Wall Street lost trillions lost 11% of your money Adjusted for inflation Wall Street lost

20% of your money Warning Wail Street will do it again by 2020

Paul Farrell

Reasons Wall Street Loses Another 20% in This Decade

INDUSTRY

Insurance

Health-care admin

Technology

Technology

Inswance

Health-care admhn

Health care

Oth

OthOT

Market Watch March 2010



OurMission

To be the premierprovider of life settlement purchaser services for individual

accredited investors and institutional fund managers Life Partners is dedicated to

building long-term relationshjs with clients byproviding the highest quality of

policy evaluation and purchasing services within an environment that promotes
honesty integrityand fairness

LIFE ICE RS



COMPARATIVE GRowTH

1000

800

11Dm

600

$113M

lOOm

80m1

70m

60m

NET INCOME



COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNJ
ASSUMES INITIAL INVESTMENT OF $100



Total

PERFORMANCE

Holder

Oppenheimer Main Street Small Cap Fund

Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund

Advanced Series Tr-AST/First Trust Capital Appreciation Targ

JNL/Mellon Capital Management JNL Fund

iShares Russell 2000 Index Fund

Vanguard Small-Cap Index Fund

DFA U.S Micro Cap Series

Hartford Small Company HLS Fund Inc

JNL/Mellon Capital Management Select Small-Cap Fund

Vanguard Strategic Equity Fund

Reported Shares Outstg

Dec 09 206202 1.4

Dec 09 146237 1.0

Dec 09 144296 0.9

Dec 09 140000 0.9

Feb 10 105340 0.7

Dec 09 100480 0.7

Jan 10 87079 0.6

Mar10 79402 0.5

Dec 09 74000 0.5

Dec 09 61105 0.4

2215965 14.8%

Total 1144141 7.6%



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE

WASHINGTON D.C

FORM 10-i

Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15 of the Securities Act
For the fiscal year ended February

Commission File Number 0-7900

LIFE PARTNERS HOLDINGS
Name of registrant in its charter

Texas 74-2962475

State of incorporation I.R.S Employer ID no
204 Woodhew Drive 76712

Waco Texas Zip Code
Address of Principal Executive Offices

Registrants telephone number including area code 254-751-7797

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Exchange Act

Common Stock par value $0.01 per share NASDAQ Global Select

Title of Class Name of exchange on which registered

Securities registered pursuant to Section l2g of the Exchange Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of

the Securities Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13

or Section 15d of the Exchange Act

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of

the Exchange Act during the past 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such

reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for at least the past 90 days Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if

any every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during

the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files

Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained

herein and will not be contained to the best of the registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information

statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer

or smaller reporting company See definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller

reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act Check one

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Indicated by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Section 2b-2 of the Exchange Act
Yes No

The aggregate market value of the Comn-ion Stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant as of August 31 2009
was $124733911 based on the last reported sale price of $17.14 adjusted for 2008 and 2009 splits on that date on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market

Shares of Common Stock $.01 par value outstanding as of May 2010 14859016 15024354 issued and

outstanding less 165338 treasury shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Our definitive proxy statement in connection with the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the

Commission pursuant to Regulation 4A is incorporated by reference into Part III of this report
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PART

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this annual
report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28 2010

fiscal 2010 concerning our business prospects or future financial performance anticipated revenues

expenses profitability or other financial items estimates as to size growth in or projected revenues from

the life settlement market developments in industry regulations and the application of such regulations
and our strategies plans and objectives together with other statements that are not historical facts are

forward-looking statements as that term is defined under the federal securities laws All of these

forward-looking statements are based on information available to us on the date hereof and we assume no
obligation to update any such forward-looking statements Forward-looking statements involve number
of risks uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual results to differ materially from those

stated in such statements Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include but are not

limited to those discussed in this annual report on Form 10-K particularly in the sections entitled

Item 1A Risk Factors and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations We do not undertake any obligation to release publicly any revisions to such

forward-looking statements to reflect events or uncertainties after the date hereof or reflect the occurrence
of unanticipated events

Item Business

Life Partners

General Life Partners Holdings Inc we or Life Partners is specialty financial services

company and the parent company of Life Partners Inc LPJ LPI is the oldest and one of the most

active companies in the United States engaged in the secondary market for life insurance known generally

as life settlements LPI facilitates the sale of life settlements between sellers and purchasers but does

not take possession or control of the policies The purchasers acquire the life insurance policies at

discount to their face value for investment purposes

The Secondary Market for Life Insurance Policies LPI was incorporated in 1991 and has

conducted business under the registered service mark Life Partners since 1992 Our operating revenues
are derived from fees for facilitating life settlement transactions Life settlement transactions involve the

sale of an existing life insurance policy to another party By selling the policy the policyholder receives

an immediate cash payment to use as he or she wishes The purchaser takes an ownership interest in the

policy at discount to its face value and receives their ownership interest in the death benefit under the

policy when the insured dies

We are specialty financial services company providing purchasing services for life settlements

to our client base We facilitate these transactions by identifying examining and purchasing the policies
as agent for the purchasers To meet market demand and maximize our value to our clients we have

made significant investments in proprietary software and processes that enable us to facilitate higher
volume of transactions while maintaining our quality controls Since our inception we have facilitated

over 107000 purchaser transactions involving over 6200 policies totaling over $2.3 billion in face value

We believe our experience infrastructure and intellectual capital provide us unique market position and

will enable us to maintain sustainable growth within the life settlement market

We act as purchasing agent for life settlement purchasers In performing these services we
identify qualify and purchase policies on behalf of our clients that match their buying parameters and

return expectations Because we are obliged to work within these parameters we must make offers that

are competitive from the sellers point of view but still fit within the buying parameters of our clients

This success-based compensation formula ensures that we bring value to both parties to the transaction



and that both purchaser and seller are satisfied We locate potential policy owners through network of

life settlement brokers and to lesser extent through insurance financial and estate planning

professionals through personal referrals and through Internet and print media advertising Brokers are

typically compensated based on percentage of the face value of the policy sold and this amount is

negotiated between the policyholder and the broker This compensation is paid upon the closing of

settlement Estate planning professionals and financial planners typically operate on fee-for-service

basis which is paid directly by their client We have long-term relationships with many of the countrys

life settlement brokers and for those that we transact business with believe that these brokers adhere to

applicable regulatory requirements when conducting their business Broker referrals accounted for 99%

of our total business as measured by policy face value in each of fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 In fiscal

2010 only one broker made referrals whose policy face values represented over 10% of our total

business Referrals from this broker accounted for 15% of our total business In fiscal 2009 we had three

brokers with 10% or more of our total business and they accounted for 44% of our total business In

fiscal 2008 we had three brokers with 10% or more of our total business and they accounted for 69% of

our total business We are encountering more brokers in the market and believe that greater competition

among brokers has reduced our supply concentration risk

We categorize our purchasers of life settlements as either institutional or retail Institutional

purchasers are typically investment funds designed to acquire and hold life settlements From the

beginning of fiscal 2008 we have acted as the purchasing agent for one institutional fund in which we

have $6.5 million investment as of February 28 2010 The institutional fund has acquired policies

through us having face value of $278 million The institutional fund accounted for 1% 8% and 7% of

our total revenues in fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

We have pursued the sponsorship of two funds ourselves In fiscal 2008 we initiated fund to

raise from $20 million to $100 million to acquire policies but were not successful in obtaining sufficient

subscriptions to close the fund The fund was structured as limited partnership and we offered the

interests ourselves and through placing brokers in private placement In fiscal 2010 we initiated

second fund to raise $10 million This fund is also structured as limited partnership and we are offering

the interests ourselves and through placing brokers to small number of qualified investor in private

placement The fund has not closed and we cannot ensure that we will raise the required capital We

have pursued the sponsorship of funds believing that these funds will expand our retail efforts by

affording purchasers an alternative to the current retail model in which purchasers acquire direct interests

in policies We believe that securities brokers are accustomed to seeing investment products in fund

structure and their familiarity with funds structures may increase broker interest We also believe the

fund structure will aid market penetration by enabling us to sell in states that treat life settlement

transactions as securities which limits or blocks our ability to sell in those states

The majority of our clients are high net worth individuals which we refer to as retail purchasers

Our retail purchasers generally come to us through network of financial planners whom we call

licensees We developed this network through referrals and have long-standing relationships with most of

these financial planners Although the financial planners can be compensated through fee-based

consultations paid by the purchaser we compensate most of the financial planners based on the amount

invested The compensation of financial planners is paid in cash upon the closing date of the transaction

To purchase life settlement prospective retail purchaser typically submits purchaser

application containing personal information such as the purchasers name and address as well as

affirmative representations establishing the purchaser as financially sophisticated purchaser will also

submit an agency agreement and special power of attorney which appoints us as limited agent of the

purchaser to act on his or her behalf in purchasing life settlement Unless specifically waived by

purchaser the agency agreement limits our authority to policies issued by an insurance carrier having an

A.M Best Company rating of or better and to policies beyond their contestable period generally two

years or older For most of the policies that we broker on behalf of our clients the insureds have life



expectancy of between 48 months and 60 months although we can identify policies with longer life

expectancies or other purchasing parameters if requested by our clients As we identify and qualify

policies we distribute insurance and current medical status information on these policies with the

insureds name and other identifying information redacted throughout our financial planner network We
also make available to each purchaser through their financial planner standard disclosures discussing the

nature and risks of making life settlement purchase Purchasers can then in consultation with their

financial planner or other professionals select one or more policies specify the portion of the policy or

policies to be purchased and submit reservation electronically To diversify their positions retail

purchasers generally buy fractional interests in one or more policies and not an entire policy while

institutional purchasers tend to purchase entire policies Prior to reserving an interest purchasers mail or

wire funds for acquisition of the policies to an escrow agent and mail or electronically deliver policy

funding agreement to us The policy funding agreement identifies the policy or policies to be purchased

the acquisition price the administrative services provided and the escrow arrangements for receipt and

disbursement of funds

For the protection of the sellers ownership interest and the purchasers monetary interest all

transactions are closed through an outside escrow agent The escrow agent will close purchase when it

receives from each purchaser executed policy funding agreements and the acquisition price for policy
verifies that the policy is in full force and effect and that no security interest has attached to the policy
and receives transfer of policy ownership form acknowledged by the insurance company The escrow

agent then pays the seller the offer price net of fees and costs We send confirmation of the transaction

to the purchaser as well as copy of the assignment documents

After closing the transaction we generally hold title to the policy as nominee for the purchaser

Responsibility for policy premium costs passes to the purchaser who typically funds the premium costs

from the deposits with the escrow agent We strictly maintain the confidentiality of an insureds personal
information in accordance with regulations promulgated by the Texas Department of Insurance and other

applicable state laws purchaser will receive evidence of the transfer of ownership of the policy which
identifies the insured but will not receive contact information for the insured which is available only to

licensed life settlement companies like us We perform certain ministerial functions such as monitoring
the insureds health status and notifying the escrow agent upon the insureds death We also notify

purchasers in instances in which the premium escrow account has been exhausted so that the purchaser

can replenish the account to keep the policy from lapsing

Conflicts of Interest Our business model can pose conflicts of interest which may arise when we
purchase policies for our own account while purchasing policies for others Conflicts could arise between

retail and institutional purchasers if we were to favor one over the other financial incentive to favor

one over the other could exist if the compensation that we earn is higher with one type of purchaser than

the other or in the case of institutional purchasers if we have financial interest in the institutional

purchaser We have pursued the sponsorship of funds that would acquire policies If we were to close

sponsored fund the fund would purchase interests in policies alongside with and on similar terms as our

retail clients and would not have conflict of interest However it is possible that retail clients and funds

might compete with institutional purchasers for policies and would pose conflicts of interest

We believe that several factors mitigate the conflicts We work to ensure the neutral pricing of

policies that is that policies are priced according to the value and risk presented If pricing is neutral
there is no financial reason for favoring one policy over another One factor in policy pricing is assessing

life expectancy which is determined in our model by an independent medical doctor Once we have the

life expectancy we apply pricing formula to determine the purchase price Further most sellers are

represented by experienced brokers who know the market for settlements Another factor that reduces

the impact of conflicts is that policies are typically sold in pieces rather than in whole Thus several

purchasers participate side-by-side in single policy which diminishes the risk that one purchaser might
be favored over another purchaser The methods by which purchasers select policies also reduce the



potential for conflicts Retail purchasers choose the policies in which they wish to participate from the

available policies posted on our website Institutional purchasers will typically set the parameters of

policies that they wish to acquire

We also avoid conflicts since we rarely compete against our retail or institutional purchasers in

acquiring policies We purchased the bulk of the policies
for our own account as part of settlement

agreements or tertiary purchases in which we acquired previously purchased policies because they were

no longer suitable for the purchasers These were not opportunities offered to our retail or institutional

purchasers and thus we were not competing with our purchasers In the fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008

we acquired 974 interests in policies for our own account all but one of which was part of settlement

or tertiary purchase In the fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008 we also invested in one institutional fund

for which we served as purchasing agent The fund has completed its acquisitions of policies and is no

longer purchasing We supplied approximately 39% of the policies purchased by the fund and its

purchases from us were never more than 8% of our revenues in any one year Our compensation from the

fund was less than the compensation we typically earned on retail purchases

The Lfe Settlement Market and Competition Life settlements provide secondary market for

existing life insurance policies that the owner no longer needs or wants and that insure person whose life

expectancy can be reasonably estimated From the early 2000s through 2007 the market for life

settlements grew substantially from both the demand and the supply sides of the transaction with an

increase in the average face amount of policies presented for sale The larger amount of capital required

to meet the higher acquisition costs of the average life settlement led us to seek relationships with

institutional purchasers in addition to expanding our base of retail clients and increasing the minimum

investment amount We have devoted substantial marketing and client development resources to

attracting both individual and institutional purchasers both directly and through their advisors The

number of retail purchasers and the amount of their average investment has increased over the last three

fiscal years providing us with significant market advantage by enabling us to reach the diversification

goals of our clients as well as giving us greater flexibility in purchasing policies Institutional purchasers

have played less significant role in our business In the fiscal years 2010 2009 and 2008 we had one

institutional purchaser that accounted for 1% 8% and 7% of our revenues respectively We believe that

this market segment has potential however and continue to seek institutional opportunities

In 2009 report the insurance research group Conning Co the Conning report estimated

that the life settlement industry completed $12 billion in face value of transactions in 2007 and

$11.8 billion in 2008 Based on our own research from other providers publicly reported data and

estimates based on historical data we estimate the total amount of face value of transactions completed

by the life settlement industry in 2009 was $7.3 billion The Conning report
attributed the decline in

market size from 2007 to 2008 to the disruption of the credit markets in 2008 As noted in the Conning

report estimates of market size are only approximations since precise market data is not available

publicly We are the only publicly held company operating exclusively in this market Some competitors

file publicly available transaction activity with state insurance commissions However not every

company may report its transactions and the accuracy of the information relies on the veracity of the

filings made by each company

Based on our estimate of $7.3 billion market in 2009 our market share is approximately 7%

Although the overall life settlement market contracted which may be attributable to the distress of the

credit markets our business model does not use leverage and thus our market share grew from 6% in

2008 to 7% in 2009 as there was less competition for quality policies We believe the life settlement

market is highly diversified among market participants We estimate that our largest industry competitor

currently has about 19% of the total market share Excluding ourselves and this large competitor the

remaining 74% of the market is divided among approximately 30 other market participants of which only

five have between and 10% each of the total market share Unlike some of our competitors which rely

on the credit markets and may have more restrictive purchasing parameters or single provider of



investment capital our retail oriented model has broad base of over 25000 clients We believe this

diversified model makes us more competitive in the market and provides us with greater funding

flexibility We also believe that this model provides stronger platform for our sustainable growth as

company Markets are segmented by length of life expectancy and policy face value The amount of

competition in these markets varies according to the demand for such policies

While we believe the life settlement market overall will remain flat or increase slightly during the

next year we believe our market share will continue to increase due to number of factors First market

demand from our purchaser base remains strong for these transactions Unlike much of our competition

we are not adversely affected by any restraint on credit The continued general economic uncertainty has

led many purchasers to seek alternative investment strategies that diversify their portfolios and avoid

economically sensitive investments Life settlements provide diversification and produce returns that are

not correlated to stock and bond market fluctuations depressed real estate markets or the currently

uncertain credit market We believe that interest from retail and institutional purchasers will grow
throughout the next fiscal year

second contributing factor as to why we believe our share of the life settlement market may
continue to increase is the solid supply of higher face value policies Because of increased education

among financial professionals and advisors there is growing awareness among policy owners of the

value that can be realized from life settlements The growing awareness has expanded the supply of

eligible policies especially policies with higher face values We believe much of our increased business

over the last three
years

is due to the steady supply of higher face value policies and we believe this trend

will continue We intend to increase our market share by growing our client base and utilizing our

substantial intellectual capital and infrastructure to provide superior value to both policyholders and our

clients Among our core competencies is the ability to process and close transactions quickly and more

efficiently than our competitors We believe our ability to deploy our assets into the market in this

manner will enable us to continue to increase our market share

Limited access to capital the insurance industrys addition of pre-death cash benefits law

enforcement
pressure on companies operating illegally and increasing government regulation have

contributed to stabilization in the number and sophistication of life settlement companies both those

purchasing for their own accounts and those like us who act as agents for our clients We estimate the

number of life settlement companies that are consistently active in purchasing for their own account or as

agents for purchasers has declined to seven We believe this reduction in the number of competitors

results from the withdrawal of companies that relied heavily on leverage and single or preferred client

model in the face of tightened credit markets In contrast our business model uses no leverage and is

multi-client model As credit markets tightened in 2008 and 2009 the number of companies remaining in

the market allowed us to see more policies and to be more selective in the policies we chose As result

we were able to realize higher revenues per settlement policy in each of fiscal 2008 2009 and 2010

Although we are one of the larger life settlement companies based on face value of policies

settled competition within the life settlement market is active among the few companies in this sector

and we will continue to experience competition for qualified policies to purchase This competition will

have an effect on the prices we pay for policies the amount of brokerage and referral fees we pay and the

prices we set for the acquisition of policies We believe the overall market for life settlements will

increase as more seniors become aware of their option to liquidate an unwanted policy through life

settlement In light of our experience in the market and our estimates concerning competition and supply
and demand for policies we believe our total business volume for life settlements will increase in

fiscal 2011

The following table shows the number of life settlement contracts policies we have transacted

the aggregate face values and purchase prices of those contracts and the revenues we derived for our last

three fiscal years



Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008

Number of settlements policies 201 196 200

Face value of policies $590 189000 $693715000 $415293000

Average revenue per settlement 562171 528645 363046

Total net revenues derived 62019160 54420577 36822734

The revenues derived are exclusive of brokerage and referral fees

Industry Regulation and Taxation

General When the life settlement market was first established it was sparsely regulated Due in

part to well-publicized abuses within the industry the federal government and various states moved to

regulate the market in the mid-1990s These regulations generally took two forms One sought to apply

consumer protection-type regulations to the market This application was designed to protect

policyholders and purchasers Another sought to apply securities regulations to the market in an effort to

protect purchasers Various states have also used their insurance regulations to guard against insurance

fraud within the industry

Consumer Protection Licensing The consumer protection-type regulations arose largely from the

draft of model law and regulations promulgated by the National Association of Insurance

Commissioners NAIC At least 40 states have now adopted some version of this model law or another

form of regulation governing life settlement companies in some way These laws generally require the

licensing of providers and brokers require the filing and approval of settlement agreements and

disclosure statements describe the content of disclosures that must be made to insureds and sellers

describe various periodic reporting requirements for settlement companies and prohibit certain business

practices deemed to be abusive Some of these laws fix minimum payment levels that purchaser must

pay selling insured based on the insureds life expectancy The minimum payment requirements

generally apply when the insured is terminally ill or has short life expectancy 42 months or less In

our settlement transactions we typically deal with policies having life expectancies of 48 months or

longer and thus these requirements do not usually affect our settlement transactions

Licensing Many states require the licensing of life settlement brokers and providers mandate

disclosures to sellers or purchasers or both require periodic reporting requirements and set forth

prohibited business practices We are licensed as viatical and life settlement company by the Texas

Department of Insurance Under the Texas requirements we must file our transaction documents with the

state for approval make certain disclosures to insureds and sellers offer 15-day right of rescission to the

seller file certain annual reports with the state and abstain from unfair business practices Because all of

our transactions are completed in Texas the Department of Insurance has jurisdiction to investigate

complaints from any insured or seller regardless of the state in which that insured or seller lives

Consequently we believe Texas offers protection to all insureds or policyholders that we transact

business with including those living in states that have no licensing requirement However other states

have their own licensing requirements in order to purchase policies from policy owners in those states and

we comply with those requirements as well In addition to Texas we are licensed to engage in life

settlement transactions with policy owners residing in the following states Arkansas Connecticut

Illinois Maryland Mississippi Nevada New Jersey North Carolina Oklahoma Pennsylvania

Tennessee and Virginia We also have license application pending in the state of New York Many

other states have clearly identified exemptions from licensing requirements which permit us to purchase

from policy owners in those states according to those exemptions Information about us is available

through the Texas Department of Insurance or on its website at p//apps.tdi.state.tx.us/pcci/pcci
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Securities Regulations Some states and the Securities and Exchange Commission have

attempted to treat life settlements as securities under federal or state securities laws We have structured

our settlement transactions to reduce the risk that they would be treated as securities under state or

Federal securities law and the Federal Circuit Court for the District of Columbia has ruled that our

settlement transactions are not securities under the Federal securities laws Many state securities laws

have exceptions or registration exemptions that may enable our settlement transactions in those states

Nonetheless we have encountered claims from some states asserting that our transactions are securities

under state law We have amicably settled these claims and have worked with regulators to establish

clear guidelines for accepting clients from these states

We believe that combination of consumer protection-type laws and existing insurance

regulations provide an appropriate framework for regulation of the industry As practical matter the

widespread application of securities laws would burden us and senior Americans attempting to sell their

policies with little or no benefit to purchasers Each of our purchasers has represented themselves to be

financially sophisticated high net worth individuals or institutions which have considerably less need for

the protections afforded by the securities laws At this point due to the manner in which we structure our

settlements and the availability in some instances of exceptions and exemptions under securities laws

such laws have not limited our business model to significant extent But we cannot give assurance that

our business would not be materially and adversely impacted by securities-based regulation

Insurance Regulation As life settlement company we facilitate the transfer of ownership in

life insurance policies but do not participate in the issuance of policies Further we do not issue any type

of contemporaneous agreement to purchase policy at the time the policy is issued As such we are not

required to be licensed as an insurance company or insurance broker We do deal however with

insurance companies and professionals in our business and are affected indirectly by the regulations

covering them The insurance industry is highly regulated and these regulations affect us in numerous

ways We must understand the regulations as they apply to policy terms and provisions and the

entitlement to and collectability of policy benefits We rely upon the protections against fraudulent

conduct that these regulations offer and we rely upon the licensing of companies and individuals with

whom we do business

Employees

As of February 28 2010 we had 62 direct employees none of whom are represented by labor

union as well as 6392 licensees who act as independent contractors and refer clients to us for the

purchase of life settlements We continuously review benefits and other matters of interest to our

employees and consider our employee relations to be satisfactory

More about Life Partners

Our executive offices are located at 204 Woodhew Drive Waco Texas 76712 and our telephone

number is 254-751-7797 Our corporate information website is www.lphi.com We make available

without charge our annual report on Form 10-K our quarterly reports on Form l0-Q current reports on

Form 8-K and amendments to these
reports shortly after we file these reports with the SEC Our

informational website for potential sellers and purchasers is www.lifepartnersinc.com

Item 1A Risk Factors

In addition to other information in this annual report on Form 10-K the following risk factors

should be carefully considered in evaluating us and our business Such factors significantly affect or

could significantly affect our business operating results or financial condition This annual report on

Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements that have been made pursuant to the provisions of the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Actual results could differ materially from those



projected in the forward-looking statements as result of the risk factors set forth below and elsewhere in

this annual report on Form 10-K

Growth in the life settlement market may be affected by several factors

Growth of the life settlement market and our expansion within the market may be affected by

variety of factors including

The inability to identify sufficient numbers of qualified policies to meet demand

The inability to convince potential sellers of the benefits of life settlements

The inability to attract sufficient qualified purchasers

Competition from other life settlement companies

The occurrence of illegal or abusive business practices resulting in negative publicity about the

market and

The adoption of overly burdensome governmental regulation

In addition the life settlement market may evolve in ways we have not anticipated and we may be

unable to respond in timely or cost-effective manner If the life settlement market fails to grow as

quickly as or in the directions we have anticipated our business financial condition and results of

operations would be materially adversely affected as it relates to our large-scale growth

Our success depends on maintaining relationships within our referral networks

We rely primarily upon brokers to refer potential sellers of policies to us and upon financial

professionals known as licensees to refer retail purchasers to us These relationships are essential to our

operations and we must maintain these relationships to be successful We do not have fixed contractual

arrangements with life settlement brokers and they are free to do business with our competitors Our

network of licensees is much broader but no less important Our ability to build and maintain

relationships with our licensees will depend upon our closing rates the value we bring to our retail clients

and the level of compensation we pay to the referring professional The compensation paid to the

referring professional will affect the offer price to the seller and the compensation we receive We must

balance these interests successfully to build our referring network and attain greater profitability

Our purchasers depend on our ability to predict life expectancies and set appropriate prices if our

investment returns are not competitive we may lose purchasers

purchasers investment return from life settlement depends on three factors the difference

between the policy face amount and purchasers cost basis consisting of the acquisition cost and

premiums paid to maintain the policy the length of the holding period and the demise of the insured

We price settlements based on the policy face amount the anticipated life expectancy of an insured and

policy maintenance costs Life expectancies are estimated generally from standard medical and actuarial

data based on the historical experiences of similarly situated persons The data is based necessarily on

averages involving mortality and morbidity statistics The outcome of single settlement may vary

significantly from the statistical average It is impossible to predict any one insureds life expectancy

exactly To mitigate the risk that an insured will outlive his or her predicted life expectancy we price life

settlements to yield competitive returns even if this life expectancy prediction is exceeded by several

years In addition life settlement purchasers must be able to bear non-liquid investment for an

indeterminate period

If we underestimate the average life expectancies and price our transactions too high our

purchasers will realize smaller returns demand may fall and purchasers may invest their funds
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elsewhere In addition amounts escrowed for premiums may be insufficient to keep the policy in force

requiring purchasers to invest further proceeds to pay these additional premiums If we overestimate the

average life expectancies the settlement prices we offer will fall below market levels supply will

decrease and sellers may engage in business with our competitors or pursue other alternatives Our

ability to accurately predict life expectancies and price accordingly is affected by number of factors

including

The accuracy of our life expectancy estimations which must sufficiently account for factors

including an insureds age medical condition life habits such as smoking and geographic

location

Our ability to anticipate and adjust for trends such as advances in medical treatments that affect

life expectancy data and

Our ability to balance competing interests when pricing settlements such as the amounts paid to

policy sellers the acquisition costs paid by purchasers and the compensation paid to ourselves

and our referral networks

To support our pricing systems we use both in-house and outside specialists including medical

doctors and published actuarial data We cannot assure purchasers that despite our experience in

settlement pricing we will not err by underestimating or overestimating average life expectancies or

miscalculating reserve amounts for future premiums If we do so we could lose purchasers or policy

sellers and those losses could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and

results of operations

Government regulation could negatively impact our business

We are licensed and regulated by the Texas Department of Insurance as viatical and life

settlement company and hold licenses as life settlement provider in other states as well State laws

requiring the licensing of life settlement providers govern many aspects of our conduct operations

advertising and disclosures The laws may vary from state to state however and our activities and those

of brokers with whom we do business can be affected by changes in these laws or different interpretations

of these laws In addition some states and the Securities and Exchange Commission treat certain life

settlements as securities under state and federal securities laws We have legal precedent holding that our

settlements are not securities under the Federal securities laws Possible exceptions or registration

exemptions may be available to us under many state securities laws As result we do not believe that

the application of state or Federal securities laws will have material adverse effect on our operations

Nonetheless we have encountered claims from states that our transactions are securities under state law

and subject to registration We have settled all of these claims amicably and with clear direction as to

how we may accept clients from these states However we cannot assure you that other securities

regulators or private individuals will not attempt to apply the securities laws to our settlements or that

defending such attempts would not have material adverse effect on our business Further changes in

laws or governmental regulation could affect our brokers or clients which could have material adverse

effect on our business

Our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer beneficially owns 50% of our common stock and as

result can exercise significant influence over us

Under SEC regulations Mr Brian Pardo our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is

considered the beneficial owner of approximately 50% of our common stock largely as the result of

exercising voting power by proxy over shares held by The Pardo Family Trust He will be able to control

most matters requiring approval by our shareholders including the election of directors and approval of

significant corporate transactions His voting control affects indirectly the process for nominating

directors since theoretically he could nominate and elect directors without board involvement This
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concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying or preventing change in control of Life

Partners which in turn could have material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock or

prevent our shareholders from realizing premium over the market price for their shares of common

stock

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

We have not received within 180 days before February 28 2010 written comments from the

Securities and Exchange Commission regarding our periodic or current reports under the Securities and

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended that remain unresolved

Item Properties

Our corporate offices are located at 204 Woodhew Drive in Waco Texas We own two buildings

on adjacent lots at this location and our offices occupy both buildings which together total 24000 square

feet One building was built in 1985 and the other in 1986

Item Legal Proceedings

During the fiscal years ended February 28 2010 2009 and February 29 2008 we incurred

settlement expenses of $3615726 $1382140 and $173954 respectively for the resolution of litigation

or potential litigation In fiscal 2010 the biggest settlements were for the Maxim and State of Texas cases

discussed below We also settled case in Florida for $770000 In some instances we have repurchased

interests in policies to settle claims In these cases only the excess if any of the settlement payment

over the investment cost of the repurchased policy interest is charged to settlement expense The balance

is recorded on our balance sheet as an asset under Investments in policies and the cash expenditure is

recorded on our cash flow statement under Purchase of policies for investment purposes and capitalized

premiums

On April 12 2010 we entered into settlement agreement with Maxim Group LLC an

investment firm to settle all claims in civil action filed in 2007 Under the settlement we agreed to

deliver to Maxim 56230 shares of our common stock which were held in treasury and which were

valued for settlement purposes at $1.25 million $22.23 per share The fairness of this share delivery was

affirmed by the court in fairness hearing which was conducted on April 13 2010 The courts

affirmation enabled the shares to qualify for exemption from registration under Section 10 of the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended The cost of settlement was accrued in our consolidated financial

statements as of February 28 2010 The settlement cost had no effect on our cash position as of

February 28 2010 The delivered treasury shares will be shown as issued and outstanding in the fiscal

quarter ending May 31 2010

On April 24 2001 the state of Texas initiated suit against LPI for alleged violations of the

Texas Deceptive Trade Practices Act DTPA The State claimed that the contracts LPI used with

purchasers before 1998 did not clearly state that the purchasers were responsible for paying premiums to

keep life insurance policies purchased in force and that LPI had violated the DTPA by requesting

premiums from purchasers LPI contended that the purchasers of the policy interests were responsible to

pay premiums as they were the owners of the policies The trial court issued summary judgment in

favor of LPI which was appealed by the State After lengthy appeals process the matter was remanded

back to the trial court and the LPI and the State agreed to settle the matter by entering into an Assurance

of Voluntary Compliance AVCagreement which was filed with the court on April 2010 Under the

AVC both parties stipulate that the action relates only to certain contracts used with Texas purchasers

before 1998 The AVC further stipulates that the Attorney General did not allege that LPI miscalculated

escrow accounts or that it committed any crime fraud misappropriation or malfeasance regarding escrow

accounts Under the terms of the AVC LPI agrees not to request any further premium payments from the

Texas purchasers identified in the AVC to pay future premiums on their behalf estimated at $32162
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annually and to pay settlement costs totaling $300000 By entering into the AVC both parties agree to

release and discharge each other from any and all claims for damages or other relief arising out of the

action and we consider this matter to be completely resolved and settled

On May 2010 we settled an administrative case with the Virginia State Corporation

Commission which provides for safe harbor of procedures and disclosures that will permit us to

accept Virginia residents as purchasers within clearly defined regulatory structure The estimated cost

of this settlement of $170000 was accrued in our consolidated financial statements as of February 28
2010

We are subject to other legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business When we determine

that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated we

reserve for such losses Except as discussed above management has not concluded that it is probable

that loss has been incurred in any of our pending litigation iimanagement is unable to estimate the

possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome of any pending litigation and

iii accordingly management has not provided any amounts in the consolidated financial statements for

unfavorable outcomes if any

It is possible that our consolidated results of operations cash flows or financial position could be

materially affected in particular fiscal quarter or fiscal year by an unfavorable outcome or settlement of

any pending litigation Nevertheless although litigation is subject to uncertainty management believes

and we have been so advised by counsel handling the respective cases that we have number of valid

claims and defenses in all pending litigation to which we are party as well as valid bases for appeal of

adverse verdicts against us All such cases are and will continue to be vigorously defended and all valid

counterclaims pursued However we may enter into settlement discussions in particular cases if we
believe it is in the best interests of our shareholders to do so

PART II

Item Market for Our Common Stock Related Shareholder Matters and Our Purchases of Our

Equity Securities

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol LPHI On

April 30 2010 there were approximately 93 shareholders of record of our Common Stock Most of our

common stock is held beneficially in street name through various securities brokers dealers and

registered clearing agencies We believe that there are approximately 8920 beneficial owners of shares

of our common stock who hold in street name

The following table reflects the high and low sales prices of our common stock for each quarterly

period during the last two fiscal years adjusted for February 2009 stock split

13



Cash

Low Dividends

Year Ended 2/28/09

First Quarter $17.56 9.66 $.0700

Second Quarter $23.33 $14.69 $0700

Third Quarter $33.81 $17.06 $.0800

Fourth Quarter $36.06 $14.89 $.0700

Year Ended 2/28/10

First Quarter $20.33 $13.92 $.3200

Second Quarter $21.77 $13.61 $.2500

Third Quarter $19.50 $15.65 $.2500

Fourth Quarter $22.58 $18.59 $.2500

On May 2010 the last reported sale price of our common stock on The Nasdaq Global Select

Market was $23.39 per share Our total share volume for April 2010 was 2398200 shares compared to

3968900 shares for the same period last year

Dividends

We paid common stock dividends of $1.07 per share in fiscal 2010 and $0.29 per share in fiscal

2009 The dividend declared by the Board of Directors has been at least $0.05 per share in each quarter

since March 2005

Performance Graph

The line graph below compares the cumulative total shareholder return on our Common Stock for

the last five fiscal years with cumulative total return on the Russell MicroCap Index and the Nasdaq

Financial Index This graph assumes $100 investment in each of Life Partners Holdings Inc the

Russell Microcap Index and the Nasdaq Financial Index at the close of trading on February 28 2005 and

also assumes the reinvestment of all dividends The points represent fiscal year-end levels based on the

last trading day in each fiscal year Return information is historical and not necessarily indicative of

future performance

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Arong Life Pertrers HoIdirgs Irm The Reesell MicroCap Rdex

Arrd The NASDAQ Finascial Irrdex

2105 2/06 2/07 2/06 2/09 2/10

8--- Life Partners Holdings Inc Russell MioroCap NASDAQ Financial
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As of February 28/29

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Life Partners $100 01 SI 84 $347 S417 $o3

Russell Microcap Index S100 SI 16 $124 SIOl 53 89

Nasdaq Financial Index SI00 S121 $128 S108 60 86

\Ve selected these indices because they include companies with similar market capitalitations to

ours We believe these are the most appropriate comparisons since we are the only publicly traded

company operating exclusively in the life settlement industry and have no comparable industry peer
group

The performance graph above is being furnished solely to accompany this Annual Report on

Form 10-K pursuant to Item 201e of Regulation S-K is not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and is not to be incorporated by reference into any of our

filings whether made before or after the date hereof regardless of any general incorporation language in

such filing

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In April 2007 we issued 78125 shares upon exercise of stock option at $3.84 per share

$300000 total The shares were issued to single individual in reliance on the exemption afforded by

Section 42 under the Securities Act and under similar private offering exemption under the applicable

state securities laws

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

We have no outstanding options or shares subject to options or other purchase rights authorized

but not outstanding

Our Purchases of Our Equity Securities

We made no purchases of our equity securities during our fiscal year ended February 28 2010

Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain information concerning our consolidated financial

condition operating results and key operating ratios for the dates and periods indicated This information

does not purport to be complete and should be read in conjunction with Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our Consolidated Financial Statements

and Notes thereto

Year Ended February 28/29

millions except per share information

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Operating Results

Rcenues $113.0 $103.6 $72.6 $29.8 $20.1

Income from Operations 47.4 40.5 $27.3 4.1 1.2

Pre-tax Income 47.7 42.2 S2$.$ 4.9 2.2

Net Income 29.4 27.2 SIK8 3.4 1.1
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Year Ended February 28/29

millions except per share information

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Balance Sheet Data at Fiscal \ear End

Current Assets 37.9 $29.2 20.9 8.7 4.3

Current Liabilities 12.3 7.6 8.0 8.5 6.0

Workingcapital 25.6 $21.6 S12.9 .2 1.7

Total Aets 72.7 S52.4 S31.9 $16.6 S12.0

Total Liabilities 12.9 8.4 9.1 8.9 6.8

Shareholders Equity 59.8 $44.0 22.8 7.7 5.2

Return on Ascet 47.0% 64.5% 77.4% 23.5% 10.3%

Return on Equity 56.7 81 30 123.10 51 .9% 199

Per Share Data1

Earnings Per Share $1 .98 SI .83 SI .25 $0.23 S0.08

Dividends Per Share $1.07 S0.29 S0.25 $0.21 S0.20

Financial Ratios

Current Ratio 3.1 3.8 2.6 1.0 0.7

Quick Ratio 3.11 3.81 2.61 1.0 0.71

Earnings per share data is restated for the fiscal 2008 and 2009 stock splits

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Special Note Certain statements set forth below under this caption constitute forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 See Special Note

Regarding Forward-Looking Statements for additional factors relating to such statements

We provide the following discussion to assist in understanding our financial position as of

February 28 2010 and results of operations for the years ended February 28 2010 2009 and

February 29 2008 As you read this discussion refer to our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

thereto We analyze and explain the differences between periods in the material line items of these

statements

Critical Accounting Estimates Assumptions and Policies

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based on our

Consolidated Financial Statements that were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America To guide our preparation we follow accounting policies some

of which represent critical accounting policies as defined by the SEC The SEC defines critical

accounting policies as those that are both most important to the portrayal of companys financial

condition and results and require managements most difficult subjective or complex judgment often as

result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and may

change in subsequent periods Certain accounting estimates involve significant judgments assumptions

and estimates by management that may have material impact on the carrying value of certain assets and
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liabilities disclosures of contingent liabilities and the reported amounts of income and expenses during

the reporting period that management considers to be critical accounting estimates The judgments

assumptions and estimates used by management are based on historical experience managements

experience knowledge of the accounts and other factors that are believed to be reasonable Because of

the nature of the judgments and assumptions made by management actual results may differ materially

from these judgments and estimates which could have material impact on the canying values of our

assets and liabilities and the results of our operations Areas affected by our estimates and assumptions

are identified below

We recognize income at the time settlement closes and the purchaser has obligated itself to

make the purchase We defer $100 per life settlement to cover minor monitoring services provided

subsequent to the settlement date We amortize this deferred cost over the anticipated life expectancy of

the insureds

We sometimes make short-term advances to facilitate life settlement transaction These

amounts are included in Accounts receivable trade and are collected as the life settlement

transactions close All amounts are considered collectible as we are repaid the advance before any of the

other parties involved in the transaction receive funds

We follow the guidance contained in ASC 325-30 Investments in Insurance Contracts to

account for our investments in life settlement contracts ASC 325-30 states that purchaser may elect to

account for its investments in life settlement contracts using either the investment method or the fair value

method The election is made on an instrument-by instrument basis and is irrevocable Under the

investment method purchaser recognizes the initial investment at the purchase price plus all initial

direct costs Continuing costs e.g policy premiums and direct external costs if any to keep the policy

in force are capitalized Under the fair value method purchaser recognizes the initial investment at the

purchase price In subsequent periods the purchaser re-measures the investment at fair value in its

entirety at each reporting period and recognizes changes in fair value earnings or other performance

indicators for entities that do not report earnings in the period in which the changes occur We elected to

value our investments in life settlement contracts using the investment method As of February 28 2010

our investments in life settlements held for our own account were carried at $16460353

We establish litigation and policy analysis loss accruals based on our best estimates as to the

ultimate outcome of contingent liabilities This loss analysis is necessary to properly match current

expenses to currently recognized revenues and to recognize that there is certain amount of liability

associated with litigation and policy losses Through these accruals we recognize the estimated cost to

settle pending litigation as an expense These estimates are reviewed on quarterly basis and adjusted to

managements best estimate of the anticipated liability on case-by-case basis high degree of

judgment is required in determining these estimated accrual amounts since the outcomes are affected by

numerous factors many of which are beyond our control As result there is risk that the estimates of

future litigation and policy analysis loss costs could differ from our currently estimated amounts Any
difference between estimates and actual final outcomes could have material impact on our financial

statements

We must make estimates of the collectability of accounts and notes receivable and premium

advances The accounts associated with these areas are critical to recognizing the correct amount of

revenue and expenses in the proper period Within the last quarter of fiscal 2010 issues have been

resolved which have enabled us to better estimate the collectability of premium advances The agreement

with the State of Texas allowed us to specifically identify class of investors for whom we made

premium advances and which under the terms of the agreement will be uncollectible Our historical

success of collecting premium advances has enabled us to build body of evidence by which we can

demonstrate full collectability of the remaining balance of advanced premiums

17



We review the carrying value of our property and equipment for impairment whenever events and

circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated

future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition In cases where undiscounted

expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value an impairment loss is recognized equal to an

amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets The factors considered by

management in performing this assessment includes current operating results trends and prospects the

manner in which the property is used and the effects of obsolescence demand competition and other

economic factors Based on this assessment there was no impairment during fiscal years 2010 2009 and

2008

We must evaluate the useful lives of our property and equipment to assure that an adequate

amount of depreciation is being charged to operations Useful lives are based generally on specific

knowledge of an assets life in combination with the Internal Revenue Service rules and guidelines for

depreciable lives for specific types
of assets

We are required to estimate our income taxes This process involves estimating our current tax

exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax

and accounting purposes These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities We must then

assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the

extent we believe that recovery is not likely we must establish valuation allowance To the extent we

establish valuation allowance or increase this allowance in period we must include tax provision or

reduce our tax benefit in the statements of income We use our judgment to determine our provision or

benefit for income taxes deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against

our net deferred tax assets

We cannot predict what future laws and regulations might be passed that could have material

effect on our results of operations We assess the impact of significant changes in laws and regulations on

regular basis and update the assumptions and estimates used to prepare our financial statements when

we deem it necessary

We have not made any material changes to our critical accounting estimates or assumptions or the

judgments affecting the application of those estimates or assumptions We discuss our significant

accounting policies including those policies that are not critical in Note of our Consolidated Financial

Statements

New Accounting Pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements have been issued including ASC 320 810 815 820 825

855 958-320 and ASC 946-10-15-2 ASU 2009-12 For discussion of these pronouncements refer to

Footnote of our Consolidated Financial Statements

Life Partners

We are the worlds oldest and only publicly traded company operating exclusively in the life

settlement industry Our revenues are primarily derived from fees associated with facilitating life

settlement transactions

Comparison of Years Ended February 28 2010 2009 and February 29 2008

We had net income of $29426278 for the year ended February 28 2010 fIscal 2010
compared to net income of $27159116 for the year ended February 28 2009 fiscal 2009 and

$18756271 for the year ended February 29 2008 fiscal 2008 The 8.3% increase in net income in

fiscal 2010 is attributable primarily to 9.1% increase in revenues and our ability to increase our

operating margins by remaining highly selective in our purchasing strategies resulting in 14.0%

increase in revenues net of brokerage and licensee fees The increase in revenues net of brokerage fees
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together with the large decrease in the allowance account for premium advances resulted in an increase in

income from operations of 17.1% The 44.8% increase in net income in fiscal 2009 was attributable to

42.7% increase in revenues and 47.8% increase in revenues net of brokerage and licensee fees The

large increase in revenues net of brokerage fees resulted in an increase in income from operations of

48.6% Legal and professional costs were $1311637 $1839782 and $1660176 in fiscal 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively and after executive and employee bonuses and payroll comprised the largest

single general and administrative expense The legal and professional costs were attributable primarily to

legal costs associated with the administrative case by the state of Virginia our audit and tax preparation

fees our SEC filings the lawsuit with the state of Texas defending ourselves in the arbitration against

former investment banking firm and other legal matters as they arise See Item Legal Proceedings

Revenues Revenues increased by $9381843 or 9.1% from $103614440 in fiscal 2009 to

$112996283 in fiscal 2010 This increase was due primarily to the increased number of settlements

from 196 in fiscal 2009 to 201 in fiscal 2010 There was also 6.3% increase in the average revenue per

settlement increasing from $528645 in fiscal 2009 to $562171 in fiscal 2010 as we continued our trend

of brokering larger face value policies at higher margins Our revenues increased at slower rate than in

previous years as institutional sales declined leaving retail sales as our primary source of revenue

Revenues increased $31005185 or 42.7% from $72609255 in fiscal 2008 to $103614440 in

fiscal 2009 While the number of settlements we transacted in fiscal 2009 decreased by 2.0% from fiscal

2008 from 200 to 196 our average revenue per settlement increased 45.6% from $363046 in fiscal 2008

to $528645 in fiscal 2009 The increase in revenue per settlement resulted from brokering larger face

value policies

During the periods despite the global economic recession demand for our services remained

strong and the number of policies presented to us and meeting our purchasing qualifications remained

constant We continue to see supply of policies with higher face values that meet our purchasing

parameters and we anticipate this supply trend to continue for the foreseeable future Most of our

competitors have adopted single or preferred client business model which relies on relatively narrow

purchaser base In contrast we employ broad based multi-client business model and our purchaser

base is much broader While single purchaser may account for substantial share of revenues during

particular quarterly period we do not intend to become reliant upon any single purchaser and expect that

no single purchaser will account for substantial share of revenues during the long-term We believe this

business model will permit us to achieve sustainable growth for the foreseeable future without the risks

associated with single or limited number of clients

We believe the increasing demand for our services results from several factors one of which is an

investment trend toward diversifying investment portfolios and avoiding economically sensitive

investments Returns on life settlements are linked to the lives of the insureds As such settlements

function independently from and are not correlated to traditional equity and debt markets and

commodity investments We benefit from the investment community searching for returns higher than

what is currently available in the traditional marketplace Although we serve both domestic and foreign

purchasers domestic purchasers accounted for approximately 99% of our business in fiscal 2010 In

fiscal years 2009 and 2008 the ratio was approximately 80% domestic and 20% foreign This decline is

due to large foreign institution reducing its purchases of life settlements

Another contributing factor has been the greater supply of higher face value policies We believe

there is growing awareness of the secondary market for insurance policies among potential sellers

especially for those with higher face value policies This growing awareness has resulted in an expansion

of the supply of eligible policies in particular higher face value policies We believe much of our

increased business is due to the greater supply of higher face value policies and we believe this trend will

continue
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Brokerage and Referral Fees Brokerage and referral fees increased 3.6% or $1783260 from

$49193863 in fiscal 2009 to $50977123 in fiscal 2010 Brokerage and referral fees increased 37.5% or

$13407342 from $35786521 in fiscal 2008 to $49193863 in fiscal 2009 Brokerage and referral fees

constituted 45.1% of revenues in fiscal 2010 compared to 47.5% in fiscal 2009 and 49.3% in fiscal 2008

Due to an increase in the number of brokers in the market that are presenting policies to us we have noted

substantial reduction in the concentration of brokers that provide policies In fiscal 2010 2009 and

2008 broker referrals accounted for 99% of the total face value of policies transacted Policies presented

from one broker represented more than 10% of all completed transactions in fiscal 2010 at 15% In

fiscal 2009 policies presented from three brokers who each represented more than 10% of all completed

transactions totaled 44% of the total face value In fiscal 2008 policies presented from three brokers who

each represented more than 10% of all completed transactions totaled 69% of the total face value

Brokerage and referral fees generally increase or decrease with revenues face values of policies

transacted and the volume of transactions although the exact ratio may vary according to number of

factors Brokers may adjust their fees with the individual policyholders whom they represent In some

instances several brokers may compete for representation of the same seller which will result in lower

broker fees Referral fees also vary depending on factors such as varying contractual obligations market

demand for particular kind of policy or life expectancy category and individual agreements between

clients and their referring financial planners No broker fees are paid when policy owner is not

represented by broker and presents policy to us directly

Many states now license life settlement brokerage activity which may result in the capping of

fees or the increased disclosure of fees either of which would tend to lower the fees

Operating Expense General and administrative expenses increased by 15.1% or $1620401

from $10747398 in fiscal 2009 to $12367799 in fiscal 2010 General and administrative expenses

increased 32.8% or $2656577 from $8090821 in fiscal 2008 to $10747398 in fiscal 2009 Premium

advances in fiscal 2010 were negative $1715265 as the allowance account for premium advances was

reduced Premium advances net of reimbursements were $1444476 and $978767 in fiscal years 2009

and 2008 respectively Executive and employee bonuses increased $865815 from $2287955 in fiscal

2009 to $3153770 in fiscal 2010 Executive and employee bonuses increased $966715 from $1321240

in fiscal 2008 to $2287955 in fiscal 2009 Increased payments in both years are direct result of our

increased profitability which is linked to executive compensation plans and bonuses given to all

employees

Also included in fiscal 2010 general and administrative expenses are legal and professional

expenses of $1311637 primarily associated with legal actions with the states of Colorado Virginia

Florida and Texas and in defending ourselves in the Smith and Maxim cases This compares

favorably with legal and professional expenses $1839782 in fiscal 2009 and $1660176 in fiscal 2008

We have settled all material actions and believe our legal and professional expenses will further decline in

fiscal 2011 See Item Legal Proceedings

For various legal actions or claims in which we believe we might incur liability we paid non

recurring settlement expenses of $3615726 in fiscal 2010 compared to $1382140 in fiscal 2009 and

$173954 in fiscal 2008 significant portion of the settlement expense was the result of settlements with

Maxim for $1250000 of treasury stock and the state of Florida for $770000

We make advances on policy premiums to maintain certain policies In the typical life

settlement policy premiums for the insureds projected life expectancy are added to the purchase price

and those future premium amounts are set aside in an escrow account to pay future premiums When the

future premium amounts are exhausted purchasers are contractually obligated to pay the additional policy

premiums In some instances purchasers have failed to pay the premiums and we have repurchased the

policy or advanced the premiums to maintain the policies While we have no contractual or other legal

obligation to do so and do not do so in every instance we have made premium advances as an
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accommodation to certain purchasers based on our assumptions that we will ultimately recoup the

advances While some purchasers repay the advances directly reimbursements of these premiums will

come most likely as priority payment from the policy proceeds when an insured dies

We must make estimates of the collectability of these premium advances We recorded an

allowance against the premium advances at the time of the advance and treated reimbursements as

reduction of the allowance Until fiscal 2010 due to the uncertainty of the outcome of relevant court

case we were unable to estimate the amount of any future advances we may elect to make or the timing

of the amount of reimbursements we were likely to receive Within fiscal 2010 issues were resolved

which enabled us to better estimate the collectability of premium advances The agreement with the State

of Texas allowed us to specifically identify class of investors for whom we made premium advances

and which under the terms of the agreement will be uncollectible Our historical success of collecting

premium advances has enabled us to build body of evidence by which we can demonstrate full

collectability of the remaining balance of advanced premiums To date we have ultimately been fully

reimbursed when we have made an advance and the policy has matured As result we eliminated $6.4

million of the allowance on the advanced premiums account in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 we made premium advances of $2518316 $1916693 and

$1195018 respectively and were reimbursed $683669 $472217 and $216251 respectively The

advances less the reimbursements for periods before fiscal 2010 are included as net expense within

operating expenses

Interest Income and Expense Net interest income and expense increased from $1493696 in

fiscal 2008 to $1743108 in fiscal 2009 and decreased to $1446476 in fiscal 2010 The increase in

interest income in fiscal 2009 corresponded to higher investment balances as well as maturities on owned

policies The decrease in net interest income in 2010 was result of lower market interest rates on
investments There were several maturities on policies gains and distributions from our investment in the

life settlements trust in fiscal 2010 The gain from our investment in fiscal 2010 was $648969 Interest

expense declined from $162508 in fiscal 2008 to $61182 in fiscal 2009 to $46988 in fiscal 2010

Interest expense related primarily to the long-term debt financing on our property which was retired on

April 28 2009

Realized Loss on Investments We realized loss of $1823364 on investment securities in fiscal

2010 compared to none in fiscal 2009 and $39523 in fiscal 2008 The tax effect for the year ended

February 28 2010 was calculated assuming that the long-term capital loss deduction for tax purposes

would be reduced by any long-term capital gains we are able to net against by carrying back or canying

forward the loss to past and future tax returns As of February 28 2010 we have no certain future capital

gains therefore the net tax effect for the year ended February 28 2010 is only what we will be able to

carry back or $26879 The loss in fiscal 2010 was result of our conclusion that the unrealized loss in

fair value of our investment securities was no longer temporary The decline in fair value of securities in

previous periods was not recognized for financial reporting purposes as the loss was considered

temporary in nature The unrealized loss in previous periods was included in Other Comprehensive Loss

within the equity section of the balance sheet

Income Taxes Income tax expense increased by $3256115 or 21.7% from $15027538 in

fiscal 2009 to $18283653 in fiscal 2010 Income tax expense in fiscal 2010 increased significantly due

to increased pre-tax earnings taxed at 35% and the accrual of $831233 of Texas Margin Tax $402104
for an estimated assessment due to non-deductibility of certain payments in past and current periods

included in our calculation of the Texas Margin and $429129 for the current year ended February 28
2010 due in May of 2011 Income tax expense was also affected by the impact of establishing

$611298 allowance within the deferred income tax asset account This allowance was established to

recognize the uncertainty of netting future capital gains against current capital loss Income tax expense
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increased $4996677 or 49.8% from $10030861 in fiscal 2008 to $15027538 in fiscal 2009

Increased income tax in fiscal 2009 is direct result of the increase in pre-tax earnings

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Activities Net cash flows provided by operating activities declined by 3.1%

decreasing $905323 from $28445291 in fiscal 2009 to $27539968 in fiscal 2010 Net cash flows

provided by operating activities increased by 135% or $16360571 from $12084720 in fiscal 2008 to

$28445291 in fiscal 2009 Net cash flows provided by operating activities in all years resulted primarily

from net income Fiscal 2010s cash flow was decreased primarily by decrease in the advanced

premiums allowance account and an increase in accounts receivable and increased primarily by an

increase in accrued liabilities Fiscal 2009s cash flow was increased primarily by decrease in accounts

receivable and decreased by decline in accounts payable Fiscal 2008s cash flow was decreased

primarily by an increase in accounts receivable and increased by an increase in accounts payable

Investing and Financing Activities We used cash of $5988772 in investing activities in fiscal

2010 versus $15878496 in fiscal 2009 and $4867162 in fiscal 2008 As our net income has increased

and our financial condition has strengthened we have used some of these earnings to purchase policy

interests for our own account We purchased policies of $7863520 in fiscal 2010 compared to

$8013324 in fiscal 2009 and $464212 in fiscal 2008 Of the policies purchased in fiscal 2010 and 2009

$6441625 and $6318665 respectively represented policies that we acquired in connection with

settlement with the state of Colorado The terms of the settlement afforded us the opportunity to purchase

large number of policy interests from existing clients on terms that provided value to us as well as our

clients We completed the purchase of these policies in our first quarter of fiscal 2010 which ended May

31 2009 We have continued to acquire policy interests on discretionary basis as those opportunities

are presented to us by existing clients and on terms that are agreeable to both parties We believe that we

will profit from the investment in these policies when they mature

In fiscal 2010 we invested $1227484 in life settlements trust which acquired life settlement

interests Our investment followed an earlier investment of $5000000 in the life settlements trust in

fiscal 2009 In addition to investing we acted as non-exclusive purchasing agent for the trust and its

predecessor partnership The trust is no longer acquiring life settlements and we do not anticipate further

investments The trust owns portfolio of life insurance settlements with an initial face value of $706

million which we anticipate will mature over the next few years The trust has experienced some

maturities during the course of fiscal 2010 and we have been paid from these maturities Cash proceeds

from the maturities were $420743

In fiscal 2010 we made purchases of property and equipment of $382567 while in fiscal 2009

we made purchases of $413734 and in fiscal 2008 purchases of $2380558 The purchases of property

and equipment in 2008 were primarily the purchase of land and building adjacent to our corporate

headquarters and an airplane which was also sold in fiscal 2008 Investments in certificates of deposit

were zero in fiscal 2010 $1948651 in fiscal 2009 and $1084952 in fiscal 2008 Maturities of

certificates of deposit were $2933069 in fiscal 2010 while it was zero in both fiscal years
2009 and

2008 Investment purchases in marketable securities were zero in 2010 $502787 in fiscal 2009 and

$1727440 in fiscal 2008

We used $14003685 in financing activities in fiscal 2010 versus $4418125 in fiscal 2009 and

$3626032 in fiscal 2008 We paid dividends of $13224612 in fiscal 2010 $3331675 in fiscal 2009

and $2445218 in fiscal 2008 We paid off our long-term debt in fiscal 2010 at cost of $779073

Payments on the line of credit and long-term debt in fiscal 2009 and 2008 were $2387399 and

$3206168 respectively We received proceeds from loans of zero in fiscal 2010 $2000000 in fiscal

2009 and $2289226 in fiscal 2008 We made no treasury share purchases in fiscal 2010 We purchased

shares on the open market treasury shares for $699051 in fiscal 2009 and $563872 in fiscal 2008

22



Working Capital and Capital Availability As of February 28 2010 we had working capital of

$25529667 Our cash during fiscal 2010 increased by $7547511 compared with an increase of

$8148670 in fiscal 2009 and an increase of $3591526 in fiscal 2008 In the event we required credit to

facilitate our short-term cash flow management and operating capital requirements we maintained two

credit lines One credit line was secured by cash and securities on deposit As of February 28 2010 it

carried an interest rate at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate of 3.25% and had borrowing base of

$2.9 million There was no outstanding balance on this line of credit as of February 28 2010 and 2009
This line of credit was discontinued in March 2010 The other line of credit was secured by certificate

of deposit This line of credit carried an interest rate of 5.55% and had borrowing base of $1 million

There was no outstanding balance on this line as of February 28 2010 or 2009 This line was no longer

available when the collateralized certificate of deposit matured in fiscal 2010

We believe future income from operating activities will generate sufficient profits and cash flows

to meet our anticipated working capital needs in both the long and short-term In addition we continue to

explore the formation of life settlement investment funds whether sponsored externally or internally and

other types of financing opportunities which will provide more funds for life settlement transactions We
pursue these opportunities believing that the funds will expand our retail efforts by affording purchasers

an alternative to the current retail model in which purchasers acquire direct interests in policies We
believe that securities brokers are accustomed to seeing investment products in fund structure and their

familiarity with fund structures may increase broker interest We also believe the fund structure will aid

market penetration by enabling us to sell in states that treat life settlements as securities which limits or

blocks our ability to sell in those states

Our financial
strategy is to increase cash flows generated from operations by increasing revenues

while controlling brokerage and general and administrative expenses We believe that demand for life

settlements will continue to grow during the next year as the prospects for economic conditions remain

uncertain as the popularity of non-correlated assets continues to grow and as we gain competitive

advantage in growing market In addition to our traditional retail base we have expanded our services

to accommodate institutional purchasers

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any off-balance sheet arrangements or transactions

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Our outstanding contractual obligations and commitments as of February 28 2010 were

Due in less Due in Due in Due after

Total than year to years to years years

Operating leases $137319 $61751 $55055 $20513

Total obligations $137319 $61751 $20513

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

None

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our audited Consolidated Financial Statements together with the report of auditors and the notes

to the Consolidated Financial Statements are included in this Annual Report beginning on page 30

The following tables set forth our unaudited consolidated financial data regarding operations for

each quarter of fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 This information in the opinion of management includes all
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adjustments necessary consisting only of normal and recurring adjustments to state fairly the information

set forth therein Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the current

presentation These reclassifications had no net impact on the results of operations

Fiscal 2010

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $27 443604 $29055566 $30967256 525.529857

Income 1mm Operations SI 1.060.992 $11222809 SI 2690.816 SI 2463233

Eke-tax Income $11763199 $11759761 $13 155123 $11031848

Net Income 7445469 7625.015 8.431.924 5.923.870

Net Income Per Share 0.50 0.51 0.57 0.40

Fiscal 2009

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $24438146 $24788725 $28103930 $26283639

Income from Operations 9500.348 9588093 $10669663 SI 749.567

Prs_thv Tiicrn 9867611 S10.07L429 511.306.583 $10941011

Net Income 6248575 6603491 7282878 7.024.172

Net Income Per Share 0.42 0.45 0.48 0.48

Fiscal 2008

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $17578976 $17646109 $19298726 518085444

Income from Operations 6713326 6157 526 7513238 6869823

Pre-tax Income 7047.449 6588621 7983069 7167.993

Net Income 4723.946 4341111 5.215695 4.4755 19

Net Income Per Share 0.31 0.29 0.35 0.30

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

We changed independent registered public accounting firms in fiscal 2010 The decision to

change auditors was not the result of any disagreements between us and the former auditor Eide Bailly

LLP on any matter of accounting principles or practices financial statement disclosures or auditing

scope or procedure On March 2010 we announced the engagement of Ernst Young LLP as our

new independent registered public accounting firm

There have been no disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosures

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Attached as exhibits to this Annual Report are certifications of the CEO and the CFO which are

required in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the

Exchange Act This Controls and Procedures section includes the information concerning the controls

evaluation referred to in the certifications and it should be read in conjunction with the certifications for

more complete understanding of the topics presented
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Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information

required to be disclosed in our reports under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and

reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that such information is

accumulated and communicated to management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure Our

management with participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer conducted an

evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting based on the framework in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

COSO of the Treadway Commission Based on our evaluation under the framework our

management concluded that our internal controls over financial reporting were effective as of

February 28 2010

The effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of February 28 2010 has

been audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their

report which is included herein

Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Exchange Act Our internal

control system has been designed to provide reasonable not absolute assurance to our management and

Board of Directors that the objectives of our control system with respect to the integrity reliability and

fair presentation of published financial statements are met control system no matter how well

designed and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the control systems
objectives will be met Further the design of control system must reflect the fact that there are resource

constraints Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can

provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any within our company have

been detected Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer we assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of February 28 2010 In making this assessment we used the criteria established in

the framework on Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by COSO of the Treadway
Commission Based on our assessment which was conducted according to the COSO criteria we have

concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective in achieving its objectives as of

February 28 2010

For the year ended February 28 2009 our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e under the Exchange Act were not effective as result of reported material

weaknesses We took the following steps that addressed the issues associated with our material

weaknesses over financial footnote disclosures which involved implementing process-focused changes to

improve the design and operation of the controls

Developed and improved maintenance of internal controls regarding the accounting for

investments in policies and in an outside venture

Improved and updated the review of internal control documents revising and supplementing

as needed and documenting the review

Instituted oversight and monitoring of accounting procedures and review of our financial

statements and footnote disclosures by an outside consulting firm and

Incorporated the use of standardized SEC and GAAP disclosure checklists during the

preparation and review of financial statements
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We implemented these changes during the quarter ended May 31 2009 Testing of our internal

controls and review of our financial statements determined that the enhanced controls are operating

effectively Internal controls other than the reporting areas reported as material weaknesses have not

changed and are still in place and functioning effectively

Subsequent to the evaluation and through the date of this filing of this report other than the

material weaknesses noted in the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28 2009 there were no

changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected or are reasonable

likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting During the Fiscal Quarter Ended

February 28 2010

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our

last fiscal quarter
that have materially affected or are reasonable likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting
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Report of Ernst Young LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Life Partners Holdings Inc

We have audited Life Partners Holdings Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of February 28
2010 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Life Partners Holdings
Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and

for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting under Item 9A of the

Index Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could

have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Life Partners Holdings Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of February 28 2010 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States the consolidated balance sheet as of February 28 2010 and the related

consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash flows for the year then ended of Life

Partners Holdings Inc and subsidiaries and our report dated May 12 2010 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Fort Worth Texas

May 12 2010
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Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers Corporate Governance

The information required in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our proxy

statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later

than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our proxy

statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later

than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Shareholder Matters

The information required in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our proxy

statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later

than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our proxy

statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 4A not later

than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to our proxy

statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later

than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements The Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal years
ended

February 28 2010 and 2009 and February 29 2008 are included in this Annual Report beginning on

page 30

Financial Statement Schedules All schedules have been omitted because the information is not

required not applicable not present
in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule or is

included in the financial statements or notes thereto

Exhibits The exhibit list and accompanying footnote disclosures in the Index to Exhibits

immediately following the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements are incorporated herein by

reference in response to the requirements of this part of the Annual Report
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15d of the Exchange Act the registrant caused this report to

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

May 12 2010 Life Partners Holdings Inc

By /s/ Brian Pardo

Brian Pardo

President and Chief Executive Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Name Title Date

/s/ Brian Pardo President Principal Executive May 12 2010
Brian Pardo Officer and Director

/s/ David Martin Chief Financial Officer and May 12 2010
David Martin

Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

/s/ Scott Peden Secretary Director May 12 2010
Scott Peden

Is/Tad Ballantyne Director May 12 2010
Tad Ballantyne

/s/ Harold Rafuse Director May 12 2010

Harold Rafuse

/s/ Fred Dewald Director May 12 2010

Fred Dewald
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Report of Ernst Young LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Life Partners Holdings Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Life Partners Holdings Inc and

subsidiaries as of February 28 2010 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders

equity and cash flows for the year then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based

on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the consolidated financial position of Life Partners Holdings Inc and subsidiaries at February

28 2010 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States Life Partners Holdings Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of

February 28 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated May 12 2010

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Fort Worth Texas

May 12 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Life Partners Holdings Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Life Partners Holdings Inc as of

February 28 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash

flows for the year ended February 28 2009 Life Partners Holdings Inc.s management is responsible for

these consolidated financial statements Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement Our

audit of the consolidated financial statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for

our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of Life Partners Holdings Inc as of February 28 2009 and the results of

its operations and its cash flows for the year ended February 28 2009 in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Life Partners Holdings Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of

February 28 2009 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated

May 29 2009 expressed an adverse opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

/s/Eide Bailly LLP

Oklahoma City OK

May 29 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
FIRM ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders Life Partners Holdings Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income cash flows and shareholders

equity of Life Partners Holdings Inc and subsidiaries for the year ended February 29 2008 These

consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Life Partners Holdings Inc.s management
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the consolidated results of operations cash flows and shareholders equity of Life Partners

Holdings Inc and subsidiaries for the year ended February 29 2008 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Life Partners Holdings Inc and subsidiaries internal control over financial

reporting as of February 29 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioiis of the Treadway Commission COSO
and our report dated May 14 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

/s/ Murrell Hall McIntosh Co PLLP

Oklahoma City Oklahoma

May 14 2008
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LIFE PARTNERS HOLDINGS INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

FEBRUARY 28 2010 AND 2009

Page of

ASSETS

Feb 28 2010 Feb 28 2009

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $22808728 S15261217

Certificates of deposit 100534 3033603

Accounts receivable trade 12.494404 10057386

Accounts receivable other 595025 157148

Note receivable 581096 554918

Income tax receivable 152125

Deferred income taxes 745788

Prepaid expenses 375587 141286

Total current assets 37853287 29205558

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land and building 2274895 2131285

Proprietary software 511405 499046

Furniture fixtures and equipment 1.525197 1298599

Transportation equipment 9800 9800

4321297 3938730

Accumulated depreciation 1.657.293 1344243

2.664004 2.594487

cmTTT1 C1TC
1EdS. k1J

Premium advances net of allowance

of $3299624 in 2010 and $5416621 in 2009 3549912

Investment in securities 4529169 2704063

Investment in policies 16460353 8878715

Investment in life settlements trust 6456155 4935875

Artifacts and other 834700 831700

Deferred income taxes 379592 3227427

Total other assets 32209881 20577.780

Total assets $i2222172 S52.37782i

See the accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LIFE PARTNERS HOLDINGS INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

FEBRUARY 28 2010 AND 2009

Page2of2

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Feb 28 2010 Feb 28 2009

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 5514270 5068961
Accrued liabilities 345276 527126
Dividends payable 3719 341 1043316
Accrued settlement expense 503.783 462341
Current portion of long-term debt 42717
Deferred revenue 240950 227300
Income taxes payable 244333

Total current liabilities 12323620 7616094

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt net of current portion 736356
Income taxes payable 553896

Total long-term liabilities 553896 736356

Total liabilities 12877.5 16 8352450

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Common stock $0.01 par value 18750000 shares

authorized 15024354 shares issued and outstanding 150.243 150243
Additional paid-in capital 11 .4603 11 11460311
Retained earnings 49874.166 36348525
Accumulated other comprehensive loss net of taxes 2298640
Less Treasury stock 165338 shares 1635.064 1635064

Total shareholders equity 59.849656 44025375

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 572727.112 $52377825

See the accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LIFE PARTNERS HOLDINGS INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2010 AND 2009 AND FEBRUARY 29 2008

2011 2009 2008

REVENUES $1 11996.283 S103614440 $72609255

BROKERAGE FEES 50.977j_ 49193863 35786521

REVENUES NET OF BROKERAGE FEES 62.0 19.160 54420577 36822734

OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative 12367.79 10747398 8090821

Premium advances net 1.7 15265 1444476 978767

Settlement costs 3615.726 1382140 173954

Depreciation and amortization 313050 338892 325279

14.5813 10 13912906 9568821

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 47437850 40.50767 27253913

Interest and other income 1.493464 1804290 1656204

Interest expense 46.988 61182 162508

Gainlloss on investment in life settlements trust 648.969 64125

Realized loss/gain on investments 1823364 39523

272081 1678983 1533219

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 47709931 42186654 28787132

INCOME TAXES 18.283653 15027538 10030861

NET INCOME $29A26.27 27.159.116 ia7562ii

EARNINGS
Per share Basic and Diluted 1.98 1.83 1.25

AVERAGE COMMON AND COMMON EQUIVALENT
SHARES OUTSTANDING

Basic 14859$116 14866167 14.993.434

Diluted j48590i6 14.866.167 14.993910

THE COMPONENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income 29.426278 $27159116 $18756271

Gain loss on investment securities net of taxes 2.298640 1.535.8 12 729902

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME S31249Ii S154623 .304 $1 8.026.369

See the accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LIFE PARTNERS HOLDINGS INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2010 AND 2009 AND FEBRUARY 29 2008

2010 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2008

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to operating activities

Depreciation

Impairment on investment in securities

Gain on asset disposals

Impairment of investment in policies

Eamings/loss on investment in life settlements trust

Decrease in advanced premiums allowance

Deferred income taxes

Change in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Note receivable

Income taxes receivable/payable

Prepaid expenses

281882

847526

3549912
864213

445309

1818150

41442

13650

27539.968

2933069

825 67

7863520

1227484
420743

133987

3000

5988772

52.518.316

759191

65618

20451
41550

28445291

1948651

502787
413734

8013324
5000000

15878496

2000000

2387399

699051
3331675

4418 125

61.182

1.916.693

515.078.000

1568755

134359

332594
12.450

12084720

1084952

1727440
2380558

900000

464212

110.000

4867.162

2289226

3206168

300000

563872
2445218

3626.032

.52 102

7112.547

162508

1.195018

10.024 198

See accompanying summary of accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements

$29426278 $27159116 $18756271

313050

1711368

338892 325279

61538
151810

64125

385594

1481812

29918
66263

354359

2874895

26178
157438

234301

284583

6704623
425000

520128
383928

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Accrued settlement expense

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment in certificates of deposit

Certificate of deposit maturities

Investment in marketable securities

Purchases of property
and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of policies for investment purposes
and capitalized premiums

Investment in life settlements trust

Proceeds from maturities within life settlements trust

Return of investment in trust

Increase in other assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from notes payable

Payments on notes payable

Stock options exercised

Purchases of treasury shares

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS END OF PERIOD

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Interest paid net of capitalized amounts

Premium advances paid

Income taxes paid

779073

13224612
14.003685

7547511 8148670 3591526

15261217 71125472Z $15261217
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LIFE PARTNERS HOLDINGS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

February 28 2010

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Life Partners Holdings Inc we or J4fe Partners is specialty financial services company

and the parent company of Life Partners Inc LPJ LPI is the oldest and one of the most active

companies in the United States engaged in the secondary market for life insurance known generally as

life settlements These financial transactions involve the purchase of life insurance policies at

discount to their face value for investment purposes

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts

of Life Partners and its wholly owned subsidiary LPI All significant intercompany balances and

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation The consolidated financial statements have been

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States GAAP The

preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reported period Actual results inevitably will differ from those estimates and such

differences may be material to the financial statements

Reclass/Ications Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current

years presentation State income tax expense is shown on the statements of income in all periods as

deducted from pre-tax earnings to arrive at net income State income tax expense in previous periods was

part of general and administrative expense This reclassification had no impact on our results of operation

or financial condition

Cash and Cash Equivalents For purposes of the balance sheet and statement of cash flows we

consider all highly liquid investments available for current use with an original maturity of three months

or less to be cash equivalents The average balance of our general checking account balance is generally

in excess of $250000 The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC currently insures all bank

accounts up to $250000 with unlimited coverage on non-interest bearing accounts The amount of our

cash accounts in excess of the FDIC insurance limit at February 28 2010 and 2009 was $17866367 and

$13289475 respectively Amounts in interest bearing accounts in excess of $250000 are at risk to the

extent that their balances exceed FDTC coverage Money market investments do not have FDIC

protection We believe we have mitigated our exposure to loss with deposits in combination of two

smaller community banks and three of the largest national financial institutions

Certficates of Deposit Certificates of deposit are held in several banking institutions Their

original maturities are greater than three months but do not exceed year The FDIC currently insures all

bank accounts up to $250000 with unlimited coverage on non-interest bearing accounts The amount of

our certificate of deposit accounts in excess of the FDIC insurance limit at February 28 2010 and 2009

was zero and $1933244 respectively

Accounts Receivable Trade The amounts shown on the balance sheet termed Accounts

Receivable Trade are amounts reflecting settlement transactions that have closed and revenue has been

recognized before the final funds are received to settle the transactions We also sometimes make non
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interest bearing advances to facilitate settlement transaction We collect the advances generally within

30 days after the transactions close and we receive payment before any of the parties involved in the

transaction receive funds Our business model does not use leverage so there are no issues of

collectability or adverse effects due to the current credit environment The receivable amounts at

February 28 2010 and 2009 were $12494404 and $10057386 respectively

Accounts Receivable Other The amounts shown on the balance sheet at February 28 2010

termed Accounts Receivable Other is composed of $574288 from maturities of policies we will be

paid loans of $18115 to various employees and $2622 for an equipment financing loan for total of

$595025 The amount for February 28 2009 is composed of $94969 of miscellaneous receivables loans

of $51731 for various employees and $10448 for an equipment financing loan for total of $157148

We consider all receivables to be current and collectible

Note Receivable The amounts shown on the balance sheet termed Notes Receivable represent

note including interest at 5% with non-related partnership originally dated January 2008 and

renewed with guaranty and security agreement on January 23 2009 The due date was February 28

2009 This note is substantially collateralized and we instituted collection proceedings which resulted in

an agreed final judgment being entered against the debtor on April 2010 for the full amount of the note

plus accrued interest on that date attorneys fees costs all taxable costs of court and
post judgment

interest at the highest rate allowable by law Our counsel in this matter is seeking collection of this

judgment and is investigating the available collateral to foreclose upon to satisfi the judgment We
believe we will collect the full amount including accrued interest before the end of our next fiscal period

The amounts including accrued interest at February 28 2010 and 2009 were $581096 and $554918

respectively

Properly and Equipment Our property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful

lives using the straight-line method Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28 2010 and

2009 and February 29 2008 were $313050 $338892 and $325279 respectively The useful lives of

property and equipment br purposes of computing depreciation are

Building and components to 39 years

Machinery and equipment to years

Software to years

Transportation equipment years

Premium Advances We make advances on policy premiums to maintain certain policies In the

typical life settlement policy premiums for the insureds projected life expectancy are added to the

purchase price and those future premium amounts are set aside in an escrow account to pay future

premiums When the future premium amounts are exhausted purchasers are contractually obligated to

pay the additional policy premiums In some instances purchasers have failed to pay the premiums and

we have repurchased the policy or advanced the premiums to maintain the policies While we have no

contractual or other legal obligation to do so and do not do so in every instance we have made premium

advances as an accommodation to certain purchasers based on our assumptions that we will ultimately

recoup the advances While some purchasers repay the advances directly reimbursements of these

premiums will come most likely as priority payment from the policy proceeds when an insured dies

We must make estimates of the collectability of these premium advances We recorded an

allowance against the premium advances at the time of the advance and treated reimbursements as

reduction of the allowance Until fiscal 2010 due to the uncertainty of the outcome of relevant court

case we were unable to estimate the amount of any future advances we may elect to make or the timing

of the amount of reimbursements we were likely to receive Within fiscal 2010 issues were resolved

which enabled us to better estimate the collectability of premium advances The agreement with the State

of Texas allowed us to specifically identify class of investors for whom we made premium advances
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and which under the terms of the agreement will be uncollectible Our historical success of collecting

premium advances has enabled us to build body of evidence by which we can demonstrate full

collectability of the remaining balance of advanced premiums To date we have ultimately been fully

reimbursed when we have made an advance and the policy has matured As result we eliminated

$3.5 million of the allowance on the advanced premiums account in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010

During the years ended February 28 2010 and 2009 and February 29 2008 we made premium

advances of $2518316 $1916693 and $1195018 respectively and were reimbursed $683669

$472217 and $216251 respectively The change in valuation allowance less the reimbursements are

included as net expense within operating expenses

Investment in Policies From time to time we purchase interests in policies to hold for

investment purposes ASC 325-30 Accounting for Insurance Contracts states that purchaser may elect

to account for its investments in life settlement contracts based on the initial investment at the purchase

price plus all initial direct costs or at fair value We have chosen to use the cost method and continuing

costs e.g policy premiums and direct external costs if any to keep the policy in force are capitalized

Artifacts and Other The artifacts and other assets are stated at cost We have evaluated these

assets and believe there is no impairment in their value as of February 28 2010 and 2009

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets We account for the impairment and disposition of long-lived

assets in accordance with ASC 360-10 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

We review the canying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and

circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated

future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition In cases where undiscounted

expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value an impairment loss would be recognized equal

to an amount by which the canying value exceeds the fair value of assets The factors considered by

management in performing this assessment include current operating results trends and prospects the

manner in which the property is used and the effects of obsolescence demand competition and other

economic factors During fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 we recorded impairments of $281882 $151810
and zero respectively

Revenue Recognition We recognize income at the time settlement has been closed and the

purchaser has obligated itself to make the purchase We defer $100 per life settlement to cover minor

monitoring services provided subsequent to the settlement date and amortize this deferred cost over the

anticipated life expectancy of the insureds

Income Taxes We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax

consequences of transactions and events Under this method deferred tax assets and liabilities are

determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities

using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse Timing

differences between the reporting of income and expenses for financial statement and income tax

reporting purposes are reported as deferred tax assets net of valuation allowances or as deferred tax

liabilities depending on the cumulative effect of all timing differences recorded at amounts expected to

be more likely than not recoverable

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share computations are calculated on the weighted-

average of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding during the year reduced by the

treasury stock Common stock options and warrants are considered to be common share equivalents and

are used to calculate diluted earnings per common and common share equivalents except when they are

anti-dilutive

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers In fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008

compensation to single licensee organization represented 5.3% 20% and 20% respectively of all
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brokerage and referral fees In fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 compensation to one broker represented 3.2%

20% and 39% respectively of all brokerage and referral fees

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

We follow accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board the FASB
The FASB sets the GAAP that we follow to ensure we consistently report our financial condition results

of operations and cash flows References to GAAP issued by the FASB in these footnotes are to the

FASB Accounting Standards CodijIcation Topic 105 the ASC In June 2009 the FASB approved the

FASB ASC which as of July 2009 became the single source of authoritative nongovernmental

GAAP The ASC was not intended to change GAAP Rather the ASC reorganizes all previous GAAP

pronouncements into accounting topics and displays all topics using consistent structure All existing

standards that were used to create the ASC are now superseded aside from those issued by the U.S

Securities and Exchange Commission replacing the previous references to specific Statements of

Financial Accounting Standards with numbers used in the ASCs structural organization All guidance in

the ASC has an equal level of authority The ASC is effective for financial statements that cover interim

and annual periods ended after September 15 2009 There was no impact on our financial position

results of operations or cash flows as result of the adoption of ASC

ASC 320 Investments Debt and Equity Securities and ASC 958-320 Investments Debt and

Equity Securities amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance in GAAP for debt securities to

make the guidance more operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of the other-than-

temporary impairments on debt and equity securities in the financial statements Adoption of ASC 320

during our fiscal 2010 had no impact on our financial condition results of operations or cash flows

ASC 810 Consolidation among other things provides guidance and establishes amended

accounting and reporting standards for parent companys non-controlling interest in subsidiary

ASC 810 was adopted on March 2009 and had no impact on our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging expands the disclosure requirements about an entitys

derivative instruments and hedging activities We currently have no derivatives and hedging activities

As such the adoption of ASC 815 on March 2009 had no impact on our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures addresses how companies should measure

fair value when they are required to use fair value measure for recognition or disclosure purposes under

GAAP ASC 820 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands

disclosures about fair value measurements Effective March 2008 management adopted ASC 820 with

the exception of certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities that were specifically deferred

In April 2009 the FASB issued ASC 820-10 which provides additional guidance for estimating fair

value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have

significantly decreased In August 2009 the FASB further clarified ASC 820-10 Measuring Liabilities

at Fair Value which applies to all entities that measure liabilities at fair value within the scope of Topic

820 and provides clarification that in circumstances in which quoted price in an active market for the

identical liability is not available reporting entity is required to measure fair value using one or more

other valuation techniques We have no liabilities that are traded or exchanged requiring measurement at

fair value ASC 820 also includes guidance on identifying circumstances that indicate transaction is not

orderly In such circumstances the ASC specifies that valuation technique should be applied that uses

either the quote of the liability when traded as an asset the quoted prices for similar liabilities or similar

liabilities when traded as assets or another valuation technique consistent with existing fair value

measurement guidance Adoption of ASC 820 during our fiscal 2010 had no impact on our financial

condition results of operations or cash flows
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ASC 825 Financial Instruments directs that entities include disclosures about the fair value of

financial instruments whenever it issues summarized financial information for interim reporting periods

Entities shall disclose in the body or in the accompanying notes of their summarized financial information

the fair value of all financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value whether

recognized or not recognized in the statement of financial position Adopted on March 2009 ASC 825

had no impact on our financial condition results of operations or cash flows

ASC 855 Subsequent Events establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosures of

events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or available to be

issued ASC Topic 855 is effective for interim and annual periods ended after June 15 2009 The

adoption of ASC 855 during our fiscal 2010 did not have material impact on our financial condition

results of operations or cash flows

ASC 946-10-15-2 ASU 2009-12 Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset

Value per Share or Its Equivalent provides amendments to Subtopic 820-10 for the measurement of

investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value per share or its equivalent The amendments

permit as practical expedient reporting entity to measure the fair value of an investment that is within

the scope of ASU 2009-12 using the net asset value per share or its equivalent of the investment

Adoption of ASU 2009-12 during our fiscal 2010 had no impact on our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Securities investments not classified as either held-to-maturity or trading securities are classified

as available-for-sale securities Our securities investments are income and equity mutual funds and are

classified as available-for-sale securities They are recorded at fair value in Investment in Securities on

the balance sheet with the change in fair value during the periods included in equity

As of February 28 2010 the unrealized loss in Investment in Securities was $1823364 Based

on our latest analysis of these securities we have concluded that based on the length of time the

securities were in loss position some reductions in dividend rates and the fact that we intended to sell

the securities after year end the unrealized losses are no longer temporary in nature and an impairment in

the amount of the unrealized losses was recorded in earnings during the year ended February 28 2010

The basis on which the amount reclassified out of other comprehensive income into earnings was

determined using specific identification Subsequent to the recording of the impairment we had no

unrealized losses on securities at February 28 2010 Our securities investments had unrealized losses of

$3536667 at February 28 2009 The tax effect of these unrealized losses was $831600 In previous

periods we considered this unrealized loss to be temporary in nature and recorded the amount net of tax

as component of other comprehensive income and included in equity

The cost and estimated fair value of the investment securities classified as available-for-sale as of

February 28 2010 and 2009 are as follows

6240730

There were no investment securities in an unrealized loss position at February 28 2010 The

following table shows our investments gross unrealized gains/losses and fair value aggregated by

investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized

loss position at February 28 2009

Cost

Market income funds as of 2/28/2009

Gross

Unrealized

Gross

Unrealized

3.536.667 2.704063

43



Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Market income funds 355.715 147267 $2348348 53.389400 52704.063 S3.536.667

INVESTMENT IN POLICIES

From time to time we purchase interests in policies to hold for investment purposes ASC 325-

30 Investments in Insurance Contracts provides that purchaser may elect to account for its investments

in life settlement contracts based on the initial investment at the purchase price plus all initial direct costs

Continuing costs e.g policy premiums statutory interest and direct external costs if any to keep the

policy in force are capitalized

The table below describes the Investment in Policies account at February 28 2010

Remaining Life Expectancy Number of Life Carrying Face

in sears Settlement Coniracts Value Value

0-1 186 4473.238 7181.959

1-2 389 4360.930 6.810132

2-3 176 2158459 3.903.265

3-4 272 4.909.727 7.720.555

4-5 33 557.999 972879

Thereafter 50000

Total .057 $1646035 $26638790

Remaining liCe expectancy for year 01 includes all policies that have exceeded their original liCe

expectancy plus those policies that are scheduled to reach their original life expectancy during the next 12

months Remaining life expectancy is based on original life expectancy estimates and is not an indication

of expected maturity Actual maturity dates in any category may vary significantly either earlier or later

from the remaining life expectancies reported above

Premiums to be paid for each of the five succeeding fiscal years to keep the life settlement

contracts in force as of February 28 201 are as fo11o

iear 523440

Year 305.403

Year 233626

Year4 191.740

Year 17988

ThereaCter 12.000

Total estimated premiums 97

We evaluate the canying value of our investment in owned policies on regular basis and adjust

our total basis in the policies using new or updated information that affects our assumptions about

remaining life expectancy credit worthiness of the policy issuer funds needed to maintain the asset until

maturity capitalization rates and potential return We recognize an impairment on individual policies if

the expected undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the investment plus

anticipated undiscounted future premiums and capitalizable direct external costs if any Impairment of

policies is generally caused by the insured significantly exceeding the estimate of the original life

expectancy which causes the original policy costs and projected future premiums to exceed the estimated
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maturity value We recorded an impairment of investments in policies of $281882 and $151810 for the

years
ended February 28 2010 and 2009 respectively The fair value of the impaired policies at

February 28 2010 and 2009 was $576148 and $253748 respectively There was no impairment of

investments in policies for fiscal 2008

Our investment in policies increased significantly during the last quarter of fiscal 2009 and in the

first quarter of fiscal 2010 primarily as the result of the settlement of lawsuit with the state of Colorado

The Securities Commissioner for the State of Colorado had filed an action alleging violations of the

Colorado Securities Act in connection with certain life settlements transacted through our subsidiary LPI

Under the terms of the settlement agreement LPI agreed to offer to purchase the life settlements from the

Colorado purchasers alleged in the complaint and all purchasers that accepted the purchase offer received

additional compensation for the purchase equal to statutory interest As of February 28 2009 we had

purchased interests in 260 policies and paid $6318665 including $1286833 of statutory interest related

to the Colorado settlement In the first quarter of fiscal 2010 we purchased interests in an additional 264

policies related to the Colorado settlement and paid $6441625 including $1413908 of statutory

interest LPI completed this purchase offer by May 31 2009 In total we purchased interests in 524

policies and paid to the selling purchasers $12760290 of which $2700741 represented the payment of

statutory interest Statutory interest was considered part of the purchase price and is included in the stated

carrying value In the second third and fourth fiscal quarters of fiscal 2010 after the Colorado settlement

was completed we purchased additional unrelated policies of $298395 $269322 and $407452

respectively

The majority of our Investment in Policies was purchased as part of settlement agreements and

tertiary purchases from existing clients We do not currently have strategy of buying large amounts of

policies for investment purposes but we expect to continue to make tertiary purchases as they may be

presented to us and if the purchases can be made with benefit to both parties Since the purchases for our

own account are motivated by settlements and tertiary purchases the supply of available policies in the

secondary market does not affect our purchases The risks that we might experience as result of

investing in policies are unknown remaining life expectancy change in credit worthiness of the policy

issuer funds needed to maintain the asset until maturity and changes in capitalization rates

INVESTMENT IN LIFE SETTLEMENTS TRUST

The amount shown on the balance sheet termed Investment in Life Settlements Trust is an

investment in an unaffiliated corporation Life Assets Trust S.A the Trust created for the acquisition

of life settlements On August 26 2008 we entered into contractual agreement to purchase an interest

in limited partnership sponsored by SR Assets LLC at total cost of $5 million LPI performed

policy-purchasing services for this partnership on non-exclusive basis and earned fees from it as LPI

would from any other institutional client On May 31 2009 the limited partnership was converted into

the trust Life Assets Trust S.A and our interest in the partnership was converted from an equity method

investment in partnership to an equity method investment in life settlements trust with three

individual directors and JD Equity L.P the majority equity owner After the conversion we invested an

additional $1.5 million in the Trust As of February 28 2010 we owned 19.9% of the trust carried at

$6.5 million The Trust has completed the purchasing phase of its operations and at February 28 2010

owned portfolio of life insurance settlements with face value of $706 million of which LPI supplied

settlements with face value of approximately $278 million We anticipate the policies will mature over

the next few years although we cannot determine the exact time of the policy maturities and the

distribution of the underlying assets The Trust has experienced some maturities during the course of this

year and we have been paid from these maturities Our accounting policy is to show these maturities in

their three components on the statements of cash flows return of investment the cash inflows and the net

gain on the investment Fair market value for this asset is not readily determinable We have considered

45



any potential impairment to the investment and believe no adjustment to the investment value is

warranted

LEASES

We lease office equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring in various years

through 2012

Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having remaining terms

in exccs of one year as of February 28 2010 for each of the next five years and in the aggregate are as

follows

2011 61751

2012 40036

2013 15019

2014 13974

2015 6539

Total minimum future rental payments

Rental expense was $71921 $54556 and $53232 for the
years

ended February 28 2010 and

2009 and February 29 2008 respectively

Certain operating leases provide for renewal and/or purchase options Generally purchase

options are at prices representing the expected market value of the property at the expiration of the lease

term Renewal options are for periods of one year at the rental rate specified in the lease

CREDIT LINES

To facilitate our short-term cash flow management and operating capital requirements we

maintained two credit lines One credit line was secured by cash and securities on deposit As of

February 28 2010 the credit line carried an interest rate at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate of 3.25%

and had borrowing base of $2.9 million There was no outstanding balance as of February 28 2010 and

2009 We discontinued this line of credit in March 2010 The other line of credit was secured by

certificate of deposit This line of credit carried an interest rate of 5.55% and had borrowing base of

$1 million There was no outstanding balance on this line as of February 28 2010 or 2009 This line of

credit terminated when the collateralized certificate of deposit matured in fiscal 2010

LONG-TERM DEBT

We retired all of our outstanding debt on April 28 2009 As result there was no long-term debt

as of February 28 2010 As of February 28 2009 we had $779073 of current and long-term debt

secured by our land and office building with net book value of $895366

10 INCOME TAXES

Total income tax expense was allocated for the years ended February 28 2010 and 2009 and

February 29 2008 as follows

2010 2009 2008

Income tax expense from continuing operations $18283653 $15027538 $10030861

Income tax expense was made up of the following components at February 28 2010 and 2009

and February 29 2008
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2010 2009 2008

Federal income taxes $16193776 $15144333 $10220069

Deferred tax expense benefit 864215 385594 284583

State income taxes 1225662 268799 95375

Total income tax expense $18283653 $15027538 $10030861

Income tax expense differed from amounts computed by applying the Federal income tax rate to

pre-tax earnings for the years ended February 28 2010 and 2009 and February 29 2008 as result of the

following

2010 2009 2008

United States statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Valuation allowance 1.3%

State income taxes 1.1% 0.4% 02%

Provision for uncertainty in income taxes 0.6%

Permanent differences 03% 0.2% 0.4%

Combined effective tax rate 38.3% 35.6% 34.8%

The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax

assets and deferred tax liabilities were as follows

Feb 28 2010 Feb 28 2009

Deferred tax assets

Premium advances $1154865 $1895817

Investment in securities 638177 1237834

Contingency costs 569129 117124

State taxes 286150

Policy impairments 196487 97829

Compensated absences 34098 31555

Loss on investment in trust 22444 _________

2901350 3380159

Valuation allowance 611.298

Net deferred tax assets 2290052 3380159

Deferred tax liabilities

Settlement costs 945258

Depreciation 207456 152732

Prepaid expenses 11958

Net deferred tax liabilities ILl 64672 1152.732

Total deferred tax asset net 1.125.380 $3227427

In fiscal 2010 we recorded valuation allowance of $611298 for capital losses resulting from

other-than-temporary impairments

For the fiscal periods ended February 28 2010 and 2009 and February 29 2008 the amount of

non-deductible penalties paid primarily due to underpayment of estimated Federal and state income
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taxes was $10438 $63941 and $4351 respectively These penalties are included in general and

administrative expenses

With few exceptions we are no longer subject to U.S federal state or local examinations by tax

authorities for fiscal
years

2006 and prior

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes In June 2006 the FASB issued ASC 740 Income

Taxes formerly FIN 48 ASC 740 is intended to clarify the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes

recognized in companys financial statements and prescribes the recognition and measurement of tax

position taken or expected to be taken in tax return ASC 740 also provides guidance on dc-recognition

classification interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure and transition

Under ASC 740 evaluation of tax position is two-step process The first step is to determine

whether it is more likely than not that tax position will be sustained upon examination including the

resolution of any related appeals or litigation based on the technical merits of that position The second

step is to measure tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold to determine the amount of

benefit to be recognized in the financial statements tax position is measured at the largest amount of

benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement

We adopted ASC 740 at March 2007 At February 28 2010 we determined that it is more

likely than not that we will be assessed additional Texas Margin Tax for non-deductibility of certain

payments in past and current periods included in our calculation of the Texas Margin The amount

accrued for this uncertain tax position at February 28 2010 including estimated interest and penalties of

$21932 was $402104

The most current period is the first period with such tax position reconciliation of the

beginning and ending amount of unrecogniied tax expense for the current period is as follows

Balance at March 2009

Additions based oii tax positions related to the current year 402104

Balance at february 28 2010 402.l04

11 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY STOCK TRANSACTIONS
AND COMMON STOCK OPTIONS

Comprehensive income for the years ended February 28 2010 and 2009 and February 29 2008

was $31724918 $25623304 and $18026369 respectively Basic and diluted earnings per share for

_1 L_ rl 1i Tl \1\ 1\1\C 1\I\O .-

eoiripreiiexisive iiieonie ror inc years eriucu reoruary uio anu aiiu reoiuaiy LJJO UCL or

tax were $2.14 $1.72 and $1.20 respectively

Dividends There are no formal restrictions that materially limit or are reasonably expected to

materially limit our ability to pay dividends We declared and paid dividends on quarterly basis and in

the amounts as set forth in the following table

Date Declared Date Paid Dividend Amount

02/19/07 03/15/07 $0.0500

05/10/07 06/18/07 $0.0625

08/13/07 09/14/07 $0.0600

11/13/07 12/15/07 $0.0700

02/08/08 03/14/08 $0.0600

OS/2 1/08 06/16/08 $0.0700

08/07/08 09/15/08 80.0700
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10/22/08 12/15/08 $0.0800

02/24/ 09 03/16/09 $0.0700

05/07/09 06/15/09 $0.0700

05/14/09 06/II09 $0.2500

07/27/09 09/15/09 $0.2500

10/26/09 12/15/09 $0.2500

01/25/10 03/15/10 $0.2500

Stock Options ASC 718-20 Compensation Stock Compensation Awards Classified as Equity

formerly SFAF 123 requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all

share-based payment awards made to employees directors and service providers based on estimated fair

values

ASC 718-20 requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the

date of grant using an option-pricing model The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately

expected to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service period if any in our financial

statements ASC 718-20 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary

in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates

We had no share based awards that were granted modified or outstanding for the years ended

February 28 2010 and 2009 and February 29 2008 and as result we had no share based compensation

expense in any year

Information with respect to stock options and warrants outstanding to certain service providers

are as follows

2008

Shares Average Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 78125 $3.84

Exercised 78125 $3.84

Issued

Expired

Outstanding at end of year

Stock Splits On August 14 2007 our board of directors authorized five-for-four split of the

common stock effected in the form of stock dividend to be distributed on or about September 28 2007
to holders of record on September 14 2007 On January 2009 our board of directors authorized five-

for-four split of the common stock effected in the form of stock dividend to be distributed on or about

February 16 2009 to holders of record on February 2009 The par value of the additional shares of

common stock issued in connection with the stock splits was credited to Common stock and like

amount charged to Additional paid-in-capital in the period the shares were distributed Accordingly all

references to numbers of common shares and per share data in the accompanying financial statements

have been adjusted to reflect the stock splits on retroactive basis To accommodate these splits on

August 16 2007 we increased our authorized common stock from 10000000 shares to 18750000
shares The following table represents the number of common shares and per share data before and after

the stock splits
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For the \ear Ended Februar 28/29

2010 2009 2008

BeIre After Before After Befiwe After

Stock Stock Stock Stock Stock Stock

Splits Splits Splits Splits Splits Splits

Shares Outstanding

Common Stock

ksued and

outstanding 14859.016 14859016 11887213 14859.016 9.542 361 14.909 940

frcasur\ StocI 165338 165 338 132.270 165.338 73.225 114.414

crage Common and

Common Equi alent

Basic and Diluted 14859.016 14859016 11892934 14886167 595798 14.993.434

Basic and Diluted

Earnings per
Share

Net Tncrme .98 1.98 28 1.83 1.95 1.25

Treasury Stock On January 22 2008 we began buying shares on the open market to hold for

treasury stock purposes We purchased total of 39930 shares split adjusted in fiscal 2008 at total

cost of $563872 We purchased total of 50924 shares in fiscal 2009 at total cost of $699051 No

share purchases were made in fiscal 2010 These treasury shares are reflected on the Statements of

Shareholders Equity and are considered in the non-affiliated market value calculation

12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures addresses how companies should measure

fair value when they are required to use fair value measure for recognition or disclosure purposes under

GAAP ASC 820 defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands

disclosures about fair value measurements Effective March 2008 we adopted ASC 820 with the

exception of certain non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities Adoption of ASC 820-10 did not

have an impact on our financial condition results of operations or cash flows

In February 2008 the FASB agreed to defer the effective date of ASC 820 for one year for

certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the

financial statements on recurring basis at least annually We adopted ASC 820 as to these items

effective March 2009 Examples of these items include

Nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that initially are measured at fair value in

business combination or other new basis event but are not measured at fair value in subsequent

periods

Asset retirement obligations that are measured at fair value at initial recognition but are not

measured at fair value in subsequent periods or

Nonfinancial liabilities for exit or disposal activities that are measured at fair value at initial

recognition but are not measured at fair value in subsequent periods We determined the fair values of

our financial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy established in ASC 820 which requires an
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entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when

measuring fair value The standard defines fair value describes three levels of inputs that may be used to

measure fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements

The term inputs refers to the assumptions that market participants use in pricing the asset or

liability ASC 820 distinguishes between observable inputs and unobservable inputs Observable inputs

reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data

obtained from independent sources Unobservable inputs reflect an entitys own assumptions about the

assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability ASC 820 indicates that

valuation techniques should maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable

inputs ASC 820 establishes fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in valuation techniques

and creates the following three broad levels with Level being the highest priority

Level inputs Level inputs are quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date e.g equity securities traded on the New
York Stock Exchange

Level inputs Level inputs are from other than quoted market prices included in Level that

are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly e.g quoted market prices of

similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted market prices for identical or similar assets

or liabilities in markets that are not active

Level inputs Level inputs are unobservable e.g companys own data and should be used

to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available

Following is table of Investment in Securities measured at fair value on recurring basis as of

and February 28 2010 and 2009 using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets Level

significant other observable inputs Level and significant unobservable inputs Level

Level

Quoted Prices in Level Level

Active Markets for Significant Other Significant

Description Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total

February28 2010 $4529169 4529 169

February 28 2009 $2704063 $2704063

Our financial assets and liabilities are cash and cash equivalents certificates of deposit accounts

receivable note receivable investments in securities investments in policies investment in life

settlements trust accounts payable and accrued liabilities The recorded values of cash and cash

equivalents certificates of deposit accounts receivable accounts payable and accrued liabilities

approximate their fair values based on their short-term nature and are discussed in Notes through

The recorded value of the note receivable is the original note amount plus accrued interest Fair value is

not readily determinable the note is discussed in Note The recorded value of investments in securities

is based on fair value and is discussed in Note The carrying value of our investment in policies totaled

$16460353 which includes $319197 of capitalized premiums and has an estimated fair value of

$18866580 Fair value of the investment in policies was determined using Level inputs and was
calculated by performing net present value calculation of the face amount of the life policies less

premiums for the total portfolio The investment in policies is discussed in Note The recorded value of

the investment in the trust is our investment account balance Fair value is not readily determinable The

investment is discussed in Note

In April 2009 the FASB issued ASC 820-10 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures that

provides additional guidance for estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and

level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased ASC 820-10 also includes guidance
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on identifying circumstances that indicate transaction is not orderly ASC 820-10 has had no impact on

our financial condition results of operations or cash flows

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

We currently operate
under an agreement with ESP Communications Inc ESP which is

owned by the spouse of our Chief Executive Officer Under the agreement ESP performs certain post-

settlement services for us which include periodic contact with insureds and their health care providers

monthly record checks to determine an insureds status and working with the outside escrow agent in the

filing of death claims Either party may cancel the agreement with 30-day written notice We currently

pay ESP $7500 on semi-monthly basis for its services We recorded management services expense

concerning this agreement with ESP of $180000 in each of the years
ended February 28 2010 and 2009

and February 29 2008

We periodically use an aircraft owned by our Chairman and CEO and reimburse him for the

incremental costs of our use as described in applicable Federal Aviation Administration regulations

FAA Part 91 subpart We believe the reimbursed cost is well below the fair rental value for such use

In the
years

ended February 28 2010 and 2009 we reimbursed costs of $271361 and $101288

respectively for such use There were no payments in fiscal 2008

14 CONTINGENCIES

LPI is aware of certain instances wherein the insurance companies denied payment on policies in

which it arranged the settlement with purchasers Most of these denials are related to unforeseeable

reduction in face value Face value of the policies in question total $859206 and are recorded in accrued

settlement expense at February 28 2010 During the year ended February 28 2010 we accrued an

additional $335822 for future claims that might arise in relation to these policies and paid $294380 of

settlements during the year which had been accrued in previous periods

We record provisions in the Consolidated Financial Statements for pending litigation when we

determine that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably

estimated Except as discussed elsewhere in this note management has not concluded that it is

probable that loss has been incurred in any pending litigation or iimanagement is unable to estimate

the possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome of any pending litigation

and iii accordingly management has not provided any amounts in the Consolidated Financial

Statements for unfavorable outcomes if any

On April 12 2010 we entered into settlement agreement with Maxim Group LLC an

investment firm to settle all claims in civil action filed in 2007 Under the settlement we agreed to

deliver to Maxim 56230 shares of our common stock which were held in treasury and which were

valued for settlement purposes at $1.25 million $22.23 per share The fairness of this share delivery was

affirmed by the court in fairness hearing which was conducted on April 13 2010 The courts

affirmation enabled the shares to qualify for exemption from registration under Section 3a10 of the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended The cost of settlement was accrued in our consolidated financial

statements as of February 28 2010 The settlement cost had no effect on our cash position as of

February 28 2010 The delivered treasury shares will be shown as issued and outstanding in the fiscal

quarter ending May 31 2010

On April 24 2001 the state of Texas initiated suit against LPI for alleged violations of the

Texas Deceptive Trade Practices Act DTPA The State claimed that the contracts LPI used with

purchasers before 1998 did not clearly state that the purchasers were responsible for paying premiums to

keep life insurance policies purchased in force and that LPI had violated the DTPA by requesting

premiums from purchasers LPI contended that the purchasers of the policy interests were responsible to

pay premiums as they were the owners of the policies The trial court issued summary judgment in
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favor of LPI which was appealed by the State After lengthy appeals process the matter was remanded
back to the trial court and the LPI and the State agreed to settle the matter by entering into an Assurance

of Voluntary Compliance AVCagreement which was filed with the court on April 2010 Under the

AVC both parties stipulate that the action relates only to certain contracts used with Texas purchasers

before 1998 The AVC further stipulates that the Attorney General did not allege that LPI miscalculated

escrow accounts or that it committed any crime fraud misappropriation or malfeasance regarding escrow

accounts Under the terms of the AVC LPI agrees not to request any further premium payments from the

Texas purchasers identified in the AVC to pay future premiums on their behalf estimated at $32162

annually and to pay settlement costs totaling $300000 By entering into the AVC both parties agree to

release and discharge each other from any and all claims for damages or other relief arising out of the

action and we consider this matter to be completely resolved and settled

On May we settled an administrative case with the Virginia State Corporation Commission
which provides for safe harbor of procedures and disclosures that will permit us to accept Virginia

residents as purchasers within clearly defined regulatory structure The cost of this settlement of

$170000 was accrued in our consolidated financial statements as of February 28 2010

It is possible that our consolidated results of operations cash flows or financial position could be

materially affected in particular fiscal quarter or fiscal year by an unfavorable outcome or settlement of

certain pending litigation Nevertheless although litigation is subject to uncertainty management
believes and we have been so advised by counsel handling the respective cases that we have number of

valid claims and defenses in all pending litigation to which we are party as well as valid bases for

appeal of adverse verdicts against us All such cases are and will continue to be vigorously defended

and all valid counterclaims pursued However we may enter into settlement discussions in particular

cases if we believe it is in the best interests of our shareholders to do so

We have elected to advance premiums on certain older polices on which the initial premium
payment reserves have been fully utilized In the typical life settlement policy premiums for the

insureds projected life expectancy are added to the purchase price and those future premium amounts are

set aside in an escrow account to pay future premiums When the future premium amounts are exhausted

purchasers are contractually obligated to pay the additional policy premiums In some instances

purchasers have failed to pay the premiums and we have repurchased the policy or advanced the

premiums to maintain the policies While we have no contractual or other legal obligation to do so and

do not do so in every instance we have made premium advances as an accommodation to certain

purchasers based on our assumptions that we will ultimately recoup the advances While some purchasers

repay the advances directly reimbursements of these premiums will come most likely as priority

payment from the policy proceeds when an insured dies We record an allowance against the premium
advances at the time of the advance and treat reimbursements as reduction of the allowance We are

unable to estimate the amount of any future advances we may elect to make or the timing of the amount
of reimbursements we are likely to receive Since advances precede reimbursements we expect the

amount of advances will exceed reimbursements as our purchaser base increases During fiscal years

2010 2009 and 2008 we advanced premiums totaling $2518316 $1916693 and $1195018
respectively and received repayments of advances of $683669 $472217 and $216251 respectively

15 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

We established 401k retirement plan on March 2007 All employees were eligible to

participate effective January 2008 if they met specified employment requirements The 401k has

match feature whereby we will make an annual matching contribution to each participants plan account

equal to 100% of the lesser of the participants contribution to the plan for the year or 4% of the

participants eligible compensation for that year The contribution expense for our matching

contributions to the 40 1k plan for the
years ended February 28 2010 and 2009 and February 29 2008

were $166949 $69902 and $8615 respectively
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16 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The following tables set forth our unaudited consolidated financial data regarding operations for

each quarter of fiscal 2010 2009 and 2008 This information in the opinion of management includes all

adjustments necessary consisting only of normal and recurring adjustments to state fairly the information

set forth therein Certain amounts previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the current

presentation These reclassifications had no net impact on the results of operations

Fiscal 2010

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $27443604 S29055.566 $30 967 256 $2S529.857

Income From Operations $11060992 $1 .222809 51269081 12463.233

Pre-tax Income SI 1763.199 $11759761 S13155I23 11031.848

Net Income 7445 469 7.625015 8.431.924 5923.870

Net Income Per Share 0.50 0.51 0.57 0.40

Fiscal 2009

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $24438146 S24788725 $28103930 $26283639

Income From Operations 9500.348 9588093 510669.663 $10 749567

Pre-tax income 9867631 $10071 429 $11306583 $10 941011

Net Income 6248575 6603491 7.282.878 7024.172

Net Income Per Share 0.42 0.45 0.48 0.48

Fiscal 2008

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Revenues $17578976 17646 109 $19298726 18.085 444

Income From Operations 6713.326 6157.526 7.5 13238 6.869.823

Pre-tax Income 7047449 6.58862 7983069 7167 993

Net Income 4723946 4341.111 5215695 4.475519

Net Income Per Share 0.31 0.29 0.35 0.30
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EXHIBIT INDEX

DESCRIPTION OF EXHIBIT

Number Description

3.1 Articles of Incorporation dated August 16 2002

3.2 Amended Articles of Incorporation dated April 24 2003

3.3 Amended Articles of Incorporation dated August 16 2007 as

corrected

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws

4.1 Form of stock certificate for our common stock

14 Code of Ethics for Directors and Executive Officers

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

31 Rule 13a-14a Certifications

32 Section 1350 Certification

This exhibit was filed with our Annual Report on Form 0-KSB for the
year ended February 29

2004 and is incorporated by reference herein

Our exhibits on Form 10-K for the year ended February 28 2010 as filed with the SEC are

available on our website at www.lphi.com under Investor Relations/Filings They are also available to

any shareholder upon request by calling 800-368-5569 or writing to Mr Scott Peden General

Counsel Life Partners Holdings Inc 204 Woodhew Drive Waco Texas 76712 Shareholders

requesting exhibits to the Form 10-K will be provided the same upon payment of reproduction expenses
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